
Page 1 of 3 

  

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 27, 2016  
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET  
  

ITEM  DESCRIPTION 
 

16C‐0514. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

16C‐0515.  Roll Call 

16C‐0516.  Establishment of Quorum 
16C‐0517.  Pledge of Allegiance 
16C‐0518.  Reports of Standing Committees 
16C‐0519.  Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 

 No testimony on zoning items where a public hearing has been conducted 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None.  
 

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 

None. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA16‐24 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0520. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of December 12, 
2016  

4‐10  

Page 1 of 109



Page 2 of 3 

CONSENT AGENDA CA16‐24 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0521. 
 
 Approval of Contract for Galena River Trail Phase 3 Construction Engineering 

11 

 
16C‐0522. 

 
 Approval of Contract for Galena River Trail Phase 3 Materials Testing Services  

12 

 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0523. 
 
Report from American Water on Galena Water and Wastewater Operations 

 
 ‐‐ 

 
16C‐0524. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on a Five‐Year Work Plan for Cemetery Park 

 
13‐17 

 
16C‐0525. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Deer Management Program and Action Plan 
as Recommended by the Deer Committee   

 
18‐49 

 
16C‐0526. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Abating Certain Taxes Heretofore Levied by the 
City of Galena for the 2010 Sewer Bonds 

 
50‐53 

 
16C‐0527. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Abating Certain Taxes Heretofore Levied by the 
City of Galena for the 2012A Sewer Bonds 

 
54‐56 

 
16C‐0528. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Abating Certain Taxes Heretofore Levied by the 
City of Galena for the 2012B Sewer Bonds 

 
57‐60 

 
16C‐0529. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Abating Certain Taxes Heretofore Levied by the 
City of Galena for the Palace Campground 

 
61‐63 

 
16C‐0530. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on the Fiscal Year 2018‐2022 Capital 
Improvement Plan 

 
64‐102 

 
16C‐0531. 

 
Warrants 

103‐109 

16C‐0532.  Alderpersons’ Comments   
16C‐0533.  City Administrator’s Report    
16C‐0534.  Mayor’s Report   
16C‐0535.  Adjournment   

Page 2 of 109



Page 3 of 3 

 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. January 5  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council    Mon. January 9  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. January 11  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 
Posted: Thursday, December 22, 2016 at 3:30 p.m.    Posted By:   

Page 3 of 109



Regular Board Meeting  12 December 2016 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 12 DECEMBER 2016 
 

16C-0494 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 12 December 2016.  
 
16C-0495 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln 
(arrived at 6:31p.m.), Westemeier and Renner 
 
16C-0496 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
16C-0497– PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
16C-0498 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
Turner Hall Committee – A meeting was held at Turner Hall with representatives of the Joe 
Miller Trust Fund.  They presented the City with a check from the trust in the amount of $33,971.  
This is the second installment of the $180,000 as defined in the memo of understanding with the 
Galena Foundation for Turner Hall projects.    
 
16C-0499 – PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Bill Grosshans, 418 Harrison Street -   Grosshans read a prepared statement with regard to the 
work of the 2015 Deer Committee.  They did a lot of hard work, research and scientific study.  
Grosshans advised he attended every meeting and learned a lot.  He noted while the majority of 
residents do not support culling, they were in support of an aerial count.  He also urged the 
Council to enact an ordinance with teeth which bans feeding of deer.   The current DNR rules are 
not sufficient for enforcement.   
 
Barb Bertsch, 126 S. Main Street – Bertsch advised the residents of the Coatsworth are 
concerned with the sale of the property.  They have a number of things they want to clear up.  
They want to see it kept as senior housing with a minimum age of 60.  They want it to continue as 
a HUD subsidized building.  They would like to see them make the building smoke free.  It is not 
at the present time.  The residents would like to have Rock Island Economic Development 
Corporation sit down with current residents so they can get to know and understand where they 
are coming from and what the residents would like in the long run.   
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA16-23 
 
16C-0500 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
NOVEMBER 28, 2016 
 
16C-0501 – APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT BA17-06 FOR ELECTRONIC FILING 
FEES AND PARK FUND DEFICIT TRANSFER 
 
16C-0502 – APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT WITH JO DAVIESS COUNTRY FAIR 
CHARITIES, INC. FOR THE USE OF GRANT PARK FOR THE 2017 COUNTRY FAIR, 
OCTOBER 5-8, 2017 
 

Page 4 of 109



Regular Board Meeting  12 December 2016 
 

16C-0503 – APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH LOUIE’S TRENCHING SERVICE FOR 
EMERGENCY SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES 
 
Motion:   Kieffer moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve Consent Agenda CA16-23 as 
presented.         
 
Discussion:  None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
16C-0484– SECOND READING AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING CHAPTER 93, “FIRE PREVENTION AND SAFETY REQUIREMENTS FOR BED 
AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENTS” AND CHAPTER 112, “BED AND BREAKFAST 
ESTABLISHMENTS” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve the second reading of an ordinance 
amending Chapter 93, “Fire Prevention and Safety Requirements for Bed and Breakfast 
Establishments” and Chapter 112, “Bed and Breakfast Establishments” of the Code of 
Ordinances amended to include a requirement that all absentee license holders be required to 
present themselves once per year for review and renewal of the annual license.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Amended 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Bernstein, to amend the motion to include a requirement that 
all absentee license holders be required to present themselves once per year for review and 
renewal of the annual license.      
 
Discussion:  None. 
   
Amended 
Motion 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
Main 
Motion 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0487 – SECOND READING AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE 
ESTABLISHING A TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT POLICY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT TRAVEL EXPENSE CONTROL ACT 
 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve the second reading of an ordinance 
establishing a Travel Reimbursement Policy in accordance with the Local Government Travel 
Expense Control Act.    

Page 5 of 109



Regular Board Meeting  12 December 2016 
 

 
Discussion:  None. 
   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0488 – SECOND READING AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF THE 2016 TAX LEVY 
ORDINANCE FOR TAXES TO BE COLLECTED IN 2017 
 
Motion:  Hah moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve the second reading of the 2016 Tax Levy 
Ordinance for taxes to be collected in 2017, 16C-0488.   
 
Discussion:  None. 
   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
16C-0504– DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON APPEAL OF A DECISION BY THE 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS ON ZONING CALENDAR NO. 16S-05, A REQUEST BY 
ADAM JOHNSON, BRET TERRELL AND KIM EASTMAN FOR A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO 
ALLOW OUTDOOR COMMERCIAL ENTERTAINING AND COMMERCIAL ANIMAL 
BOARDING IN A LIMITED AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AT 1141 NORTH WEST STREET 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Westemeier, to deny the appeal of a decision by the Zoning 
Board of Appeals on Zoning Calendar No. 16S-05, A request by Adam Johnson, Bret Terrell and 
Kim Eastman for a Special Use Permit to allow outdoor commercial entertaining and commercial 
animal boarding in a Limited Agricultural District at 1141 North West Street.   
 
Discussion:  Bernstein feels the decision made by the Zoning Board was in part based on 
testimony that was based on supposition.  Some of the testimony that was against was based on 
what was perceived might happen and not on fact.   
 
Kieffer noted the area is zoned limited ag so the only variance would be an ag related business.   
 
Bernstein noted there is a whole list of activities that are preapproved for limited and some others 
that can be done by special use permit.  This request fell under two of those items, Commercial 
Outdoor Entertainment and Commercial Animal Boarding.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier 
  NAYS:  Bernstein 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0505– PRESENTATION OF “FINAL REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL” BY THE 2015 
DEER COMMITTEE 
 
John Cox, Carmen Ferguson and Kirk Foecking, on behalf of the 2015 Deer Committee, 
presented the final Deer Committee report. The Committee presented the following list of 
recommendations:   

Page 6 of 109



Regular Board Meeting  12 December 2016 
 

 
Committee Recommended Deer Management Program 
 
Based on the above‐itemized findings, the committee recommends the following options to the 
City Council and urges adoption of as many as the council deems appropriate to assist in 
managing deer and other wildlife in the city limits: 
 
1. Count the deer 
 
The City should: 
 

 Conduct an aerial deer count, working in conjunction with the Galena Territory 
Association's deer count. 

 Evaluate the number of deer counted against the 20 deer per square mile 
reference point. 

 Estimate the degree of accuracy of the driving count for future counts. 
 Conduct annual driving counts on a regular basis. 
 Conduct an aerial count again in 2 years (winter 2018‐19) if the number of deer‐

vehicle accidents 
 in the 2018 calendar year exceeds 20. 

 
2. Educate Citizens 
 
The City should: 

 Contract with the University of Illinois Extension to provide natural resource 
education presentations at City Hall each winter that are free to the public. Topics 
might be drawn from those in the Extension's Master Naturalist program, such as 
"Urban Areas and Wildlife," Agricultural Lands and Wildlife," "Understanding the 
Natural World," and "Understanding Prairie in the Prairie State." The Master 
Gardeners program on Deer Resistant Plantings should be repeated on a regular 
basis. Include education along the lines of the "Veer for Deer" program used 
successfully in Rochester, MI. 

 Invite the formation of a citizen advisory committee to make ongoing 
recommendations to the City Council on natural resource issues (including 
wildlife management), and to assist in educating the public on natural resource 
matters. 

 Offer a survey to the citizens each year (see recommended survey in Appendix 
D). Evaluate the number of responses to the question, "Are levels of deer 
damage tolerable?" 

 
3. Install Deer Warning Signage 
 
The Illinois Department of Transportation will not install deer warning signs, but the City may do 
so in consultation with the department. The City should install deer‐warning signs along roadways 
with high deer‐vehicle incident rates (e.g. Gear St., U.S. 20, Franklin St., and Stagecoach Trail ‐ 
see Fig. 3, p. 7). 
 
4. Maintain Deer Health 
 
The City should: 

 Follow the progression of Chronic Wasting Disease in deer in Jo Daviess County 
and cooperate with the Illinois Department of Natural Resources should infected 
animals be documented in or near the City. 

Page 7 of 109



Regular Board Meeting  12 December 2016 
 

 Manage the deer population by encouraging increased hunting on private 
properties surrounding the City of Galena, and open City properties on the 
periphery of the City (e.g. Gateway Park, the acreage north of Indian Ridge 
subdivision) to hunting during the regular hunting season. 

 Determine the number of deer within the city limits (through aerial or driving 
counts, or both) per square mile each year. If the number is found to exceed 20 
deer per square mile, consider special City permission working with the IDNR to 
implement a bow‐hunting program in select areas within the city. Neither the 
hunters interviewed nor the committee recommends using firearms within the city 
limits to reduce the deer population. The Apple Canyon Lake program for testing 
and certifying bow hunters is a good reference. The City of Dubuque's program 
for identifying areas within the City limits suitable for deer hunting is a good 
reference. 

 
5. Improve the Ability to Enforce the Prohibition of Deer Feeding 
 
The City of Galena should pass an ordinance that will assist law enforcement in stopping the 
feeding of deer inside the City limits. Recommended sample ordinance language is provided in 
Appendix E. 
 
6. Monitor Overall Situation 
 
The City should annually review information about the number of deer, number and nature of 
deer incidents, status of Chronic Wasting Disease in the area, and citizen opinion. A sample 
annual report is provided as Appendix F. 
 
7. Evaluate the Galena Deer Management Plan 
 
In 3 years (December 2019) evaluate the effectiveness of the Galena Deer Management Plan as 
written and modify as appropriate.  
 
Bernstein questioned if there is a law which requires the meat from any culling be donated to a 
food pantry.  Cox advised they are suggesting regular bow hunting during deer season.  The 
hunter would obtain the proper permit and would be allowed to hunt in designated areas within 
the city limits.  There are rules to stop people from hunting in the City Limits but there are no rules 
that prohibit it.   
 
Mayor Renner thanked the committee for doing their due diligence.  He asked the Council to 
review the information.  An item will be added to the next agenda to make a decision on the aerial 
counting.   
 
16C-0506– FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF CERTAIN 
PERSONAL PROPERTY – THE COATSWORTH PROPERTY – OWNED BY THE CITY OF 
GALENA 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the first reading and waive the 
second reading of an ordinance authorizing the sale of certain real estate known as the 
Coatsworth Property owned by the City of Galena, 16C-0506.    
 
Discussion:  Council would like to see the new owners sit down with the tenants and talk over 
the proposed changes.  They have indicated a willingness to commit to elderly housing.  
 
Fach stated he would like to see the money received put in a fund for economic development, 
i.e., a bowling alley.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Hahn, Renner 

Page 8 of 109



Regular Board Meeting  12 December 2016 
 

  NAYS:  Fach 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0507 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING 
RESERVATION OF FUNDS FOR PHASE 3 OF THE GALENA RIVER TRAIL PROJECT 
 
Motion:  Westemeier moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve a resolution confirming 
reservation of funds for Phase 3 of the Galena River Trail Project.   
 
Discussion:  None. 
   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0508– FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE IN CONNECTION WITH RIGHTS AND 
RESPONSIBILITIES RELATED TO LOCALLY IMPOSED AND ADMINISTERED TAXES OF 
THE CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve the first reading and waive the second 
reading of an ordinance in connection with rights and responsibilities related to locally imposed 
and administered taxes of the City of Galena, Illinois.   
 
Discussion:  None. 
   
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0509 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Westemeier moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve the Warrants as presented with 
the addition of the following:   
 
Civil Street Paving $4,408.00 
  
Discussion:  None.     
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Hahn, Kieffer 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0510 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Deer Committee – The Council thanked John Cox and the Committee for all of their work on the 
Deer Committee.  They did an excellent job and the Council hopes to be able to implement some 
of the ideas.   
 
Thank you – Hahn thanked the Public Works crew for a tremendous job with the snow.   
 

Page 9 of 109



Regular Board Meeting  12 December 2016 
 

Luminaria – Hahn commended the group involved with holding the Luminaria this past weekend.  
It was excellent. 
 
Bus Route – Fach noted an article in the Telegraph Herald which talks about adding a bus route 
to Indian Ridge.  This is in part due to the lack of sidewalks and narrow streets in the subdivision.  
This will now cost the district $6,000.   
 
The Council wished all a Merry Christmas! 
 
16C-0511 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Capital Improvement Plan – Staff has been working on the Capital Improvement Plan.  The first 
draft will be presented at the next meeting which will be held Tuesday, December 27th.   
 
16C-0512 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Meeting - Mayor Renner reminded all the next meeting will be held on Tuesday, December 27th 
due to the holiday.   
 
Luminaria - The downtown luminaria and wedding in the window were great.   
 
Deer Committee - Mayor Renner thanked John Cox and his committee for the work on the Deer 
Committee.  
 
Mayor Renner wished all a Merry Christmas!   
 
16C-0513 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Hahn, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
   
The meeting adjourned at 7:32 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde, MMC 
City Clerk 

Page 10 of 109



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Andy Lewis ‐ City Engineer 

DATE:    20 December 2016 

RE:  Galena River Trail – Phase 3 
Approval of Proposal for Construction Engineering 

Request for proposals (RFP) for construction engineering services for the bike trail project were sent to three 
consultants. The RFP was also advertised on the city website. Unfortunately, only one proposal, from IIW 
Engineers was received. This is the same consultant who completed the engineering design and has worked 
on the project for a number of years. 

Construction engineering services will include the following:  
o Provide construction staking for the entire project.
o Provide construction observation on an ‘as need’ basis as requested by the City Engineer.
o Provide advice and complete plans and specifications for any design changes on ‘as need’ basis.

This will include assisting city staff with completion of change orders.
o Assist with coordination of materials testing.

City staff will complete the majority of construction observation and administration, and the consultant will 
only be used on an ‘as need’ basis. IDOT have informed us that all construction engineering services, for both 
city staff and consultants can be paid entirely using grant funds. At present $158,062 has been allocated for 
construction engineering. 

As IIW Engineers were the only consultant who submitted a proposal I recommend that city staff enter 
negotiation to finalize a contract agreement. We have worked with IIW Engineers since early 2012 regarding 
the planning and design of the bike trail project and have found then to be responsive, professional and 
economical to work with. They have also completed a number of other engineering projects for the city. 

I recommend the city council approves city staff to enter negotiation with IIW Engineers to finalize a contract 
agreement and fee schedule. The final agreement will be submitted to the city council for approval early in the 
New Year. 

Page 11 of 109



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:     Andy Lewis ‐ City Engineer     
 
DATE:      20 December 2016 
 
RE:  Galena River Trail – Phase 3 
  Approval of Proposal for Material Testing Services 
 
Request for proposals (RFP) for material testing services for the bike trail project were sent to three 
consultants. The RFP was also advertised on the city website. Proposals were received from Testing Services 
Corporation (TSC) and Rockford Testing Company.  
 
Material testing services will include the following:  

A. All geotechnical services for entire project. Services are to comply with minimum requirements for 
a Federally funded IDOT type project. Testing frequency to be based on IDOT Project Procedures 
Guide. 

B. Project duration is expected to be 100 days commencing in mid‐February 2017. 
 
City staff will complete the majority of construction observation and administration, and will coordinate all 
material testing with the selected consultant. IDOT have informed us that all construction engineering services 
including material testing, can be paid entirely using grant funds. At present $158,062 has been allocated for 
construction engineering. 
 
After reviewing the two proposals and completing an assessment of the selection criteria I recommend we 
enter negotiation to finalize a contract agreement with Testing Services Corporation. This company has 
completed work for the city previously, including geotechnical investigation and assessment for the Phase 3 
bike trail, fire training centre and well #7 water tower. 
 
I recommend the city council approves city staff to enter negotiation with Testing Services Corporation to 
finalize a contract agreement and fee schedule. The final agreement will be submitted to the city council for 
approval early in the New Year. 

Page 12 of 109



Page 13 of 109



Page 14 of 109



Page 15 of 109



Page 16 of 109



Page 17 of 109



	 1

City	of	Galena	‐	2015	Deer	Committee	
Final	Report	to	the	City	Council	

December	6,	2016	
 

Galena	 lies	 nestled	within	 the	natural	 beauty	 of	 Jo	Daviess	 County,	 and	because	 of	 the	 rugged	 terrain,	
there	 are	 places	 within	 the	 city	 that	 ‐	 while	 often	 platted	 for	 roads	 and	 subdivisions	 as	 if	 flat	 ‐	 have	
remained	undeveloped	natural	areas	within	the	corporate	limits.	These	natural	areas	are	appreciated	by	
both	residents	and	wildlife,	but	citizen	concerns	about	the	deer	within	the	city	have	resulted	in	the	desire	
for	 a	 deer	 management	 plan.	 This	 report	 contains	 reference	 information	 compiled	 over	 a	 14‐month	
period	 and	 a	 recommended	 management	 plan	 based	 on	 that	 information	 for	 Galena	 City	 Council	
consideration.		
	
On	September	10,	2015,	the	Galena	City	Council	completed	the	process	of	appointing	the	members	of	the	
2015	 Deer	 Committee.	 The	 committee	 members	 appointed	 were:	 John	 Cox,	 Beth	 Baranski,	 Carmen	
Ferguson,	Kirk	Foecking,	and	Mary	Hartman.		Mary	Hartman	served	for	several	months	but	was	unable	to	
continue	due	to	business	and	family	commitments.			
	
The	Council	assigned	John	Cox	as	chair	and	the	Committee	immediately	began	its	work,	holding	our	first	
meeting	on	October	21,	2015.	The	final	meeting	was	held	on	December	6,	2016.	
	
The	Committee	was	given	a	list	of	assigned	tasks	that	serve	as	the	table	of	contents	for	this	report.		
	
	

	
	
	

Page 18 of 109



	 2

The	committee	provides	its	"findings"	to	the	City	Council	within	each	section	of	the	following:	
	
	

Table	of	Contents	
	
1.	Engage	the	public	in	an	open	process	of	study	and	discussion....................................	 		3	 	
	
2.	Committee	to	take	whatever	time	needed	to	do	the	job.................................................	 		5	 	
	
3.	Carefully	review	information	previously	accumulated	by	the	City............................	 		6	 	
	
4.	Show	findings	are	accurate	with	the	“Facts	on	the	Ground”..........................................	 		7	
	
5.	Relevance	of	Lyme	disease	issue................................................................................................	 13	
	
6.	Relevance	of	Deer	Chronic	Wasting	Disease...........................................................................	14	
	
7.	Answer	the	question	“Is	There	a	Problem?”	and,	if	so,	what	is	it?...............................	 15	 	
	
8.	Investigate	how	other	communities	have	handled	the	issue.........................................	 16	
	
9.	Options	to	reduce	the	number	of	deer	in	herd	if	determined	appropriate..............	 19					
	
10.	Committee	Recommended	Deer	Management	Program................................................	20	
	
11.	Cost	implications	and	staff	time	for	deer	population	management..........................	22	
	
		12.	Action	Plan.........................................................................................................................................	23	
	

Appendices	

Appendix	A:	2015	Deer	Population	Control	Activity	Report	and	Costs..........................	24	

Appendix	B:		Galena	Police	Department	Deer	Incident	Report	Tables............................	25	

Appendix	C:	Driving	Deer	Count	Methodology..........................................................................	27	

Appendix	D:	Survey	Regarding	Wildlife	in	Galena	..................................................................	28	

Appendix	E:	Ordinance	to	Deal	With	Feeding	Deer	Within	the	City	Limits...................	29	

Appendix	F:	Sample	Annual	Report	for	Deer	Management	Plan........................................	30	

	 	 	

	

	

Page 19 of 109



	 3

1.	Engage	the	public	in	an	open	process	of	study	and	discussion	

Members	 of	 the	 Deer	 Committee	made	 commitments	 to	 begin	 and	 remain	 open‐minded	 on	 issues,	 to	
attend	 committee	meetings	 to	 be	 sure	 all	members	 are	 on	 the	 same	 page,	 to	 follow	Robert’s	 Rules	 of	
Order,	to	vote	if	necessary	but	maintain	a	goal	of	consensus,	and	to	sign	the	Final	Report	to	send	to	the	
City	 Council.	 	We	 committed	 to	 a	 totally	 open	 process	 and	 agreed	 that	we	would	 post	 all	 information	
(some	 from	 presenters	 and	 some	 from	 citizens	 and	 others)	 on	 the	 city	 website	 unless	 it	 was	 not	
technologically	achievable.		We	have	done	so	and	you	are	urged	to	take	a	look	at	the	City	webpage	on	the	
2015	Deer	Committee,	where	our	materials	are	posted.	
	
We	 have	met	 once	 per	month	 (except	 for	 October,	 2016)	 on	 the	 third	Wednesday	with	 our	meetings	
published	as	required	under	the	Open	Meetings	Act.	We	have	placed	our	approved	meeting	notes	on	the	
webpage	 as	well.	 	We	 have	 reached	 out	 to	what	we	 believed	were	 relevant	 presenters	 to	 assist	 us	 in	
accumulating	information	to	fulfill	the	tasks	you	have	assigned.		Complete	meeting	notes	are	available	on	
the	city	website	at	http://www.cityofgalena.org/en/your_government/agendas_and_minutes/2015_deer_committee/	
Meeting	topics/presentations	have	been	as	follows:	
	
October	21,	2015	 	 Committee	discussion	to	establish	a	plan	of	action	and	proposed	meeting		
	 	 	 	 agendas	
	
November	19,	2015	 	 Presentation	on	the	Galena	Territory	Association	deer	management	program		
	 	 	 	 by	Joe	Mattingley,	Rich	Mattas,	and	Emily	Lubcke	
	
December	16,	2015	 	 Presentation	on	Apple	Canyon	Lake	deer	management	program	by	Jim		
	 	 	 	 Petelle		and	John	Schereson,	members	of	their	Deer	Management	Committee	
	
January	20,	2015	 	 Presentation	on	Lyme	disease	and	other	deer	related	issues	by	Laura	Simon,		
	 	 	 	 Wildlife	Ecologist	for	the	Humane	Society	of	the	United	States	
	
February	17,	2016	 	 Presentation	on	Deer	Chronic	Wasting	Disease	and	other	matters	by	Doug		
	 	 	 	 Dufford,	Illinois	Department	of	Natural	Resources	
	
March	16,	2016	 	 Presentation	on	issues	the	Galena	Police	Department	deals	with	related	to		
	 	 	 	 deer	by	Lori	Huntington,	Galena	Chief	of	Police	
	
April	20,	2016	 	 Committee	discussion	on	how	to	determine	deer		population	and	benefit	of		
	 	 	 	 an	interim	report	to	the	City	Council	
	
May	18,	2016		 	 Presentation	on	how	to	feed	the	birds	without	feeding	the	deer	by	Julie		
	 	 	 	 Bruser,	Wild	Birds	Unlimited	
	
June	15,	2016		 	 Committee	discussion	on	possible	citizen	survey	
	
July	20,	2016	 	 	 Presentation	on	general	issues	of	wildlife	management	by	Peggy	Doty,		
	 	 	 	 University	of	Illinois	Extension	Educator	from	Ogle	County		
	
	
	
	
	

Page 20 of 109



	 4

August	17,	2016	 	 Presentation	on	how	to	garden,	choose	plants,	and	other	information	related		
	 	 	 	 to	dealing	with	wildlife	near	one’s	own	garden,	by	Krista	Ginger,	University		
	 	 	 	 of	Illinois	Extension	Master	Gardener	
	
September	21,	2016	 	 Presentation	to	consider	assistance	from	local	hunters	to	manage	the	deer		
	 	 	 	 population	by	Bob	Buman,	hunter	
	
October	19,	2016	 	 Meeting	cancelled	
	
November	16,	2016	 	 Discussion	with	property	owners	of	land	surrounding	the	City	of	Galena	to		
	 	 	 	 consider	approval	by	those	property	owners	and	the	Department	of		 	
	 	 	 	 Natural	Resources	of	hunting	those	properties	with	assistance	from	local		
	 	 	 	 hunters	with	the	goal	of	managing	the	deer	population	
	
December	1,	2016	 	 Committee	works	to	complete	Final	Report	
	
December	6,	2016	 	 Committee	works	to	complete	Final	Report	
	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Page 21 of 109



	 5

2.		Committee	to	take	whatever	time	needed	to	do	the	job	
	
In	discussions	with	the	Mayor	at	the	time	the	committee	was	formed	by	the	City	Council,	the	committee	
was	 advised	 to	 take	whatever	 time	 the	 committee	 needed	 to	 fulfill	 the	 various	 commitments	made	 in	
agreeing	to	proceed	with	the	Council’s	direction.		The	Mayor	urged	the	committee	to	meet	at	City	Hall	as	
often	 as	 the	 committee	 deemed	necessary	 to	 do	 the	 research	 and	 hold	 public	 hearings	 to	 receive	 and	
process	 information	 regarding	 the	 various	 issues	 confronted	 in	working	 to	 complete	 the	 committee’s	
assigned	tasks.			
	
The	 committee	members	 determined	 that	 the	 hearings	 held	 to	 date	 and	 the	 information	 accumulated	
through	 the	 research	 done	 and	 study	 completed	 are	 sufficient	 to	 allow	 the	 committee	 to	 provide	 this	
Final	Report	to	the	Mayor	and	City	Council.	 	Although	the	committee	is	not	opposed	to	further	efforts	if	
requested	 by	 the	 city	 leaders,	 the	 committee	 feels	 that	 this	 report	 should	 provide	 those	 leaders	with	
sufficient	information	to	make	decisions	on	how	to	proceed	with	the	recommendations	provided	in	this	
report.			
	
The	committee	wishes	to	express	its	appreciation	to	all	presenters	who	came	to	our	public	hearings,	to	
city	staff	 for	 their	patient	assistance	 in	distributing	 information	to	the	general	public	and	 in	our	use	of	
city	facilities	to	complete	our	work,	to	the	staff	of	Galena	Gazette	for	attending	our	hearings	and	sharing	
their	views	of	the	work	we	have	done,	and,	especially,	to	the	citizens	who	took	the	time	to	come	to	our	
meetings	and	contribute	their	input	as	we	proceeded.	 	We	particularly	wish	to	thank	Bill	Grosshans	for	
his	help	and	assistance	with	our	work	and	for	his	assistance	to	Beth	Baranski	in	the	weekly	deer	counts	
done	to	get	us	some	basic	data	on	the	deer	population	in	Galena.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 22 of 109



	 6

3.	Carefully	review	information	previously	accumulated	by	the	City.	
	
Our	committee	carefully	reviewed	the	information	and	found:	
	
The	 first	 committee	began	meeting	on	 July	24,	2013	and	met	4	 times.	 	At	 the	 first	meeting	 the	Galena	
Territory	Association	(GTA)	presented	information	about	their	deer	culling	program	and	the	committee	
decided	 to	 invite	Marty	 Jones	 from	 the	 Illinois	Department	 of	Natural	 Resources	 (IDNR)	 to	meet	with	
them.	 	They	desired	to	move	forward	in	time	for	the	city	to	schedule	a	helicopter	deer	census	with	the	
GTA	in	December	or	January.	
	
Marty	Jones,	from	the	IDNR	came	to	the	second	meeting	and	suggested	that	a	survey	be	done	to	assess	
the	 extent	 of	 the	 problem.	 	 	 Jones	 explained	 that	 if	 there	 is	 an	 overpopulation	 problem	 and	 a	 culling	
program	is	established,	 it	would	need	to	be	a	 long‐term	program.	 	Mark	Moran	suggested	that	 the	city	
staff	prepare	a	 report	 for	 the	 committee	 summarizing	what	has	been	 learned	 through	 research,	public	
input	and	from	the	IDNR.	
	
At	 the	 third	meeting	 they	 reviewed	 the	 committee	 progress	 report	 and	 recommendation	 prepared	 by	
staff.	 	 Committee	 member,	 Bill	 Salzman	 presented	 four	 maps	 showing	 locations	 of	 injured	 deer	 and	
deer/vehicle	 accidents.	 They	 presented	 the	 progress	 report	 to	 the	 city	 council	 at	 their	 September	
meeting.	
	
The	last	meeting	was	held	on	January	14,	2014.		The	results	of	the	community	survey	regarding	the	deer	
population	was	discussed.		They	were	disappointed	that	there	were	only	92	responses.		They	decided	to	
move	forward	with	a	permit	application	to	the	IDNR	for	culling	up	to	25	deer	in	the	winter	of	2015.	
Our	committee	reviewed	the	results	of	 the	deer	survey	and	the	map	of	deer	 locations	presented	to	the	
city	by	the	committee.	
	
Mark	Moran	prepared	an	application	for	a	Deer	Population	Control	Permit	which	was	granted	to	Galena.	
Photographs	 of	 deer	 damage	 to	 property	 and	 maps	 of	 deer/vehicle	 accidents	 were	 included.	 	 	 On	
February	9,	2015	the	culling	program	was	suspended	after	one	deer	was	killed	by	the	City's	sharpshooter	
and	one	was	wounded	and	never	found.		 	The	cost	of	the	overall	program	was	$1,264.38	(see	Appendix	
A).	A	petition,	Rethink	Deer	Culling	in	Galena,	was	presented	to	the	council.			
	
Much	 information	 about	 Deer	 Population	 Control	 permits	 were	 included	 in	 the	 committee	 report	
including	 sharpshooter	 qualification/testing	 procedures	 as	 well	 as	 an	 article	 by	 Doug	 Dufford,	 IDNR	
district	wildlife	biologist	–	Natural	Area	Protection	–	A	Case	for	Deer	Management.	
	
The	 2013	 Deer	 Committee	 studied	 what	 other	 communities	 were	 doing	 about	 deer	 over‐population.		
Included	were	the	Galena	Territory,	 the	city	of	Dubuque,	 the	city	of	Rock	Island,	and	the	city	of	Peoria.		
The	 committee	 presented	 a	 list	 of	 plants	 that	 deer	 don’t	 prefer,	 a	 deer	 repellant	 recipe,	 and	 copies	 of	
petitions	regarding	deer,	both	pro	and	con	for	culling.	
	
An	excellent	summary	of	the	issues	that	led	the	2013	Deer	Committee	to	seek	a	deer	population	control	
permit	 from	 the	 Illinois	Department	 of	Natural	 Resources	 can	 be	 found	 on	 the	 City	 of	 Galena	website	
under	the	title	of	"Committee	Information	Packet	Vol.	1"	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 23 of 109



	 7

4.	Show	findings	are	accurate	with	the	“Facts	on	the	Ground.”	
	
Deer	Incident	Reports	
The	number	 of	 deer	 incidents	 documented	by	 the	Galena	Police	Department	 has	 tripled	 from	2010	 to	
2016	 (see	 Figs.	 1‐3)	 A	 table	 containing	 detailed	 information	 supporting	 these	 graphs	 is	 available	 in	
Appendix	B.	

	
Figure	1.	Total	Deer	Incidents	

	

	
Figure	2.	Car	vs.	Deer	Incidents	

	

	
Figure	3.	2010	to	2016	Deer	Crash	Incidents	

	
	
	
	

Page 24 of 109



	 8

Referendum	Results	
	
In	the	March	15th	Primary	Election,	Galena	
voters	were	asked	to	vote	on	a	deer	management	
question.	The	question	and	the	results	are	shown	
in	Figure	4.		
	
	

	
	
Figure	4.	Referendum	Results	
	
	

	
The	Number	of	Deer	
It	 seems	 to	be	generally	accepted	 that	 the	actual	number	of	deer	 in	 the	City	 is	 an	 important	 reference	
point	for	the	development	of	a	deer	management	plan.	An	aerial	count	is	needed.	
	
Doug	 Dufford,	 Wildlife	 Disease	 Program	 Manager	 for	 the	 Illinois	 Department	 of	 Natural	 Resources,	
suggests	 that	 20‐40	 deer	 per	 square	 mile	 is	 generally	 considered	 a	 reasonable	 biological	 carrying	
capacity	in	a	rural	setting	with	good	habitat.	He	has	provided	a	map	showing	deer	habitat	areas	in	Galena	
based	 on	 criteria	 established	 by	 researchers	 at	 Southern	 Illinois	 University‐Carbondale	 that	 includes	
woodland	 acreage	 plus	 potential	 forage	 habitat.	 This	map	 indicates	 that	 there	 are	 approximately	 1.96	
square	miles	of	deer	habitat	within	the	city	limits	(fig.	9	on	page	10).	The	City	of	Galena	is	about	4	square	
miles,	and	therefore,	using	the	lower	end	of	the	recommended	range	(20	deer	per	square	mile)	because	
Galena	 is	 a	 developed	 area,	 a	 reasonable	 initial	 reference	 point	 for	 considering	 biological	 carrying	
capacity	would	be	40‐80	deer.	The	cultural	carrying	capacity	based	on	human	tolerance	for	the	deer	at	
any	given	population	level	is	a	different	matter,	may	fluctuate	over	time,	and	has	yet	to	be	established	for	
the	City	of	Galena.			
	
In	order	 to	provide	a	reference	point	 for	 trying	 to	answer	 the	question	 ‐	 “How	many	deer	are	 there	 in	
Galena?”	 the	Committee	recommended	and	the	City	Council	agreed	to	obtain	a	winter	helicopter	aerial	
count	working	in	conjunction	with	the	Galena	Territory's	annual	aerial	count.	Insufficient	snowfall	(4"	is	
desired)	 in	 the	 winter	 of	 2015/2016	 precluded	 this	 count	 from	 taking	 place.	 	 A	 drone	 count	 was	
considered,	but	the	drone	doesn't	make	enough	noise	to	startle	the	deer	into	motion.	

Page 25 of 109



	 9

In	attempt	to	provide	an	alternative	reference,	a	program	for	driving	around	town	and	counting	the	deer	
(similar	 to	 the	 approach	 used	 at	 Apple	 Canyon	 Lake)	was	 created.	 A	methodology	was	 established	 to	
eliminate	as	many	variables	as	possible	(see	Appendix	C),	and	this	regular	count	was	conducted	with	the	
thought	that	it	might	help	frame	the	general	number	of	deer	in	town,	could	help	us	understand	seasonal	
changes,	and	also	might	help	identify	specific	locations	that	tend	to	have	more	deer	than	others.	It	will	be	
interesting	to	see	how	the	driving	counts	done	as	winter	approaches	compare	with	a	winter	aerial	count	
(if	one	is	conducted).	
	
Leonard	Lee	Rue	III's	book,	The	Deer	of	North	America,	recommended	by	Rich	Mattas	during	the	Galena	
Territory	 Association's	 presentation	 to	 our	 committee,	 contains	 an	 Appendix	 with	 information	 about	
"Deer	Activity	Cycles"	describing	the	seasonal	changes	that	play	a	role	in	the	number	of	deer	that	may	be	
seen	at	any	given	time.	Some	of	that	information	is	paraphrased	here	for	reference:	
	

 January	‐	most	bucks	have	lost	their	antlers	and	are	indistinguishable	from	does	
	

 February	‐	hardest	month	on	deer	and	they	can	be	seen	feeding	more	in	the	daytime.	They	may	
hole	up	in	areas	sheltered	from	the	wind	where	snow	is	not	as	deep.	

	
 March	‐	deer	may	stay	in	fields	and	open	areas	midday	because	of	reduced	human	pressure.	

Because	food	is	still	scarce	they	can	be	seen	any	time	of	day.	
	

 April	‐	the	deer	are	very	hungry	and	feed	into	midmorning	and	start	again	at	about	3	p.m.	
	

 Mid‐May	through	the	end	of	June	‐	does	can	be	seen	almost	any	time	of	day	
	

 June	‐	poor	time	to	see	deer	as	does	that	have	given	birth	are	secretive	and	bucks	are	still	in	
seclusion	

	
 July	‐	deer	observation	picks	up	with	fawns	following	does	around	and	yearling	females	rejoining	

their	mothers,	and	bucks	become	more	active	
	

 August	‐	deer	tend	to	feed	when	it	is	cooler	
	

 September	‐	deer	are	active	in	daylight	hours	until	bow	hunting	season	opens	
	

 Last	week	of	September	and	the	first	two	weeks	of	October,	all	of	the	deer	seem	to	virtually	
disappear.	They	abandon	their	regular	haunts	and	trails,	stop	feeding	on	corn,	soybeans,	alfalfa	
and	orchards	because	acorns	are	available.	Gun	hunting	season	makes	them	more	secretive.	

	
 November	‐	the	last	week	and	a	half	of	October,	all	of	November	and	first	two	or	three	weeks	of	

December	make	up	the	rutting	season	when	the	bucks	are	most	active.	They	expand	their	range,	
throw	caution	to	the	wind,	and	can	be	seen	at	any	time	of	the	day.	Hunting	keeps	the	does	and	
their	young	out	of	sight	during	most	of	the	daylight	hours.	

	
 December	‐	usually	a	poor	month	to	see	deer	as	almost	all	deer	activity	takes	place	under	cover	of	

darkness	
	
The	table	below	(Fig.	5)	shows	the	number	of	deer	seen	in	the	driving	counts	conducted	from	April	18th	
through	November	28th,	2016	‐	a	total	of	23	counts,	ranging	from	individual	count	totals	of	6	to	30	(with	

Page 26 of 109



	 10

the	 highs	 and	 lows	 in	 each	 precinct	 highlighted),	 and	 documents	 notable	 conditions	 and	 recorded	
identification	of	fawns	and	bucks.		
	

	
Figure	5.	2016	Driving	Deer	Count	

	
The	graph	below	(Fig.	6)	depicts	the	driving	count	totals	from	April	18th	through	December	5th,	2016.		
As	a	matter	of	reference,	a	goal	of	20	deer	per	square	mile	is	used	by	the	City	of	Dubuque,	20	deer	per	
square	mile	is	the	high	range	goal	of	the	Galena	Territory	(12‐20	deer	per	square	mile),	and	the	low	
range	goal	of	the	Apple	Canyon	Lake	Property	Owners	Association	(20‐30	deer	per	square	mile).	In	
Dubuque,	the	Galena	Territory,	and	Apple	Canyon	Lake,	the	entire	square	mile	area	is	used	to	determine	
the	carrying	capacity	of	the	area	in	terms	of	number	of	deer	per	square	mile.		

	

2016	Deer	Count	Totals	by	Date

April May June July August September October November December January

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

N
um

be
r o

f D
ee

r

Date of Count

Count Taken at Dawn
Count Taken at Dusk

Page 27 of 109



	 11

Figure	6.	2016	Deer	Count	Totals	by	Date	
	

The	map	below	(Fig.	7)	shows	the	range	of	deer	totals	per	count	seen	in	each	precinct	of	the	City	from	
April	18th	through	November	14th,	2016.	

	
Figure	7.	Range	of	Deer	Totals	by	Precinct	

	
The	map	below	(Fig.	8)	shows	the	range	of	deer	totals	per	count	seen	in	each	precinct	of	the	City	from	
April	18th	through	November	28th,	2016	relative	to	wooded	areas	in	and	around	the	community.	
	

	

0-9

0-18

0-4

0-12

0-3

Page 28 of 109



	 12

Figure	8.	Range	of	Deer	Totals	Relative	to	Wooded	Areas	
	

	
Figure	9.	Deer	Habitat	Areas	within	the	City	of	Galena	and	general	locations	of	deer	numbers	per	count.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

0-9

0-18

0-4

0-12

0-3

Page 29 of 109



	 13

5.	Relevance	of	Lyme	disease	issue.	
	
Lyme	Disease	 is	an	 issue	 in	 Jo	Daviess	County,	and	while	deer	play	a	role	 in	 the	 life	cycle	of	 the	Black‐
legged	tick	that	carries	the	disease‐causing	bacterium	Borrelia	burgdorferi,	reducing	deer	populations	is	
not	the	approach	recommended	by	the	Centers	for	Disease	Control	and	Prevention,	the	Humane	Society	
of	 the	 United	 States,	 scientists	 at	 the	 Illinois	 Natural	 History	 Survey,	 or	 the	 Jo	 Daviess	 County	 Health	
Department.	 A	 vigorous	 educational	 program	 to	 inform	 citizens	 on	 how	 to	 protect	 themselves	 is	
considered	 the	 best	 way	 to	 reduce	 the	 incidence	 of	 Lyme	 disease.	 Therefore,	 while	 Lyme	 disease	 is	
certainly	a	concern,	for	the	purposes	of	this	report,	it	is	not	seen	as	a	consideration	in	the	development	of	
a	deer	management	plan	for	the	City	of	Galena.	
	
The	Jo	Daviess	County	Health	Department	records	the	number	of	Jo	Daviess	County	residents	that	have	
been	 diagnosed	with	 Lyme	 disease.	 Recorded	 incidence	 over	 the	 past	 10	 years	 is	 as	 follows:	 2006‐1,	
2007‐9,	 2008‐7,	 2009‐1,	 2010‐0,	 2011‐0,	 2012‐4,	 2013‐14,	 2014‐8,	 2015‐14.	 It	 is	 likely	 that	 there	 are	
additional	 resident	 cases	 that	 go	 undiagnosed	 and	 also	 that	 visitors	 to	 the	 county	may	 contract	 Lyme	
disease	 (cases	 are	 recorded	 in	 the	 infected	 person's	 county	 of	 residence).	 However,	 the	 Health	
Department	records	provide	a	reference	point.	The	records	are	kept	by	county	only,	so	a	breakdown	for	
the	City	of	Galena	is	not	available.	
	
The	Black‐legged	tick	has	an	interesting	life	cycle,	transforming	from	a	larvae	to	a	nymph	and	then	to	an	
adult	over	a	 two‐year	period.	The	 tick	 feeds	on	 the	blood	of	 a	 host	 animal	at	 each	 stage,	 starting	with	
small	 creatures	 (e.g.	 mice	 and	 other	 rodents,	 birds,	 and	 even	 lizards),	 moving	 to	 mid‐size	 hosts	 (e.g.	
raccoons,	possum,	skunks),	and	finally	to	large	hosts	(e.g.	deer	and	humans).	Deer	are	the	preferred	large	
host	for	the	tick,	however	the	ticks	have	been	found	to	be	very	adaptable	in	their	quest	for	a	suitable	host,	
and	with	 the	 exception	of	 the	 elimination	of	deer	on	an	 island,	 studies	do	not	 support	 the	 theory	 that	
reducing	the	deer	population	reduces	the	number	of	black‐legged	ticks.	
	
The	following	served	as	references	for	this	report,	and	may	be	helpful	should	the	City	Council	choose	to	
proceed	with	the	development	of	an	educational	program	to	prevent	Lyme	disease:		
	

 The	Centers	for	Disease	Control	and	Prevention	(http://www.cdc.gov/lyme/toolkit/index.html)	
	

 Laura	Simon	(who	presented	to	our	committee)	no	longer	works	with	The	Humane	Society	of	the	
United	States,	but	Marc	Ayers,	Illinois	State	Director	‐	HSUS	has	offered	to	be	of	assistance.	

	 (mayers@humanesociety.org)																																			
	
 Nohra	E.	Mateus‐Pinilla,	Veterinary	Epidemiologist	and	Director	of	the	Veterinary	Epidemiology	

Laboratory	at	the	University	of	Illinois,	Prairie	Research	Institute,Illinois	Natural	History	Survey.	
(217/333‐6856,	nohram@illinois.edu)	

	
 Lori	Stangl,	RN,	BSN,	Director	of	Clinical	Services,	Jo	Daviess	County	Health	Department	(815/777‐

0263,	lstangl@jodaviess.org)	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 30 of 109



	 14

6.	Relevance	of	Deer	Chronic	Wasting	Disease.	
	
Doug	 Dufford,	 of	 the	 Illinois	 Department	 of	 Natural	 Resources,	 provided	 the	 committee	 with	 his	
commentary	on	Chronic	Wasting	Disease	(CWD)	including	how	it	is	spread	and	how	close	the	disease	is	
to	Galena	and	its	surroundings.		The	Illinois	Department	of	Natural	Resources	is	working	hard	to	slow	the	
spread	of	this	disease	that	can	devastate	deer	herds	until	a	cure	can	be	found.	
	
There	are	potential	disease	concerns	about	the	bait	(and	feeding	deer	in	general),	since	this	may	cause	
unnatural	 congregation	 of	 deer	 feeding	 at	 the	 same	 source.	 This	 results	 in	 increased	 risk	 of	 disease	
transmission	 through	direct	 (animal	 to	 animal)	 contact,	 and	 through	 saliva	or	wastes	deposited	 at	 the	
bait	site.	
	
Doug	advised	that	Chronic	Wasting	Disease	is	a	neurological	disease.	It	is	caused	by	an	infectious	protein	
called	prion	and	 is	always	 fatal.	 	He	 told	us	 that	 there	 is	no	 current	 treatment	 for	 the	disease	but	 that	
there	is	research	progressing	and	one	deer	has	survived	to	date.		Once	infected,	a	deer	will	die	within	18	
months	to	2	½	years.	 	The	disease	can	only	be	confirmed	through	testing.	Infected	deer	appear	healthy	
until	the	final	stages	of	the	disease.	Over	time,	the	prions	become	integrated	with	the	neural	tissue	and	
normal	neuron	function	breaks	down,	resulting	 in	weight	 loss,	salivation,	and	 loss	of	coordination.	The	
prions	build	up	and	can	be	 shed	 in	 fluids:	 saliva,	 feces,	 and	urine.	The	disease	 is	 transferred	primarily	
through	saliva.	Deer	are	social	animals.	They	nuzzle	and	lick	each	other.	The	disease	can	quickly	spread,	
infecting	entire	family	groups.		So	far,	there	has	been	no	known	affect	on	humans.		
	
Management	involves	trying	to	lower	the	deer	density	through	localized	population	reduction.	The	goals	
are	lowered	densities,	a	younger	age	structure	in	the	population,	a	higher	population	turnover	rate,	and	a	
low	emigration	rate.		

	The	disease	entered	Illinois	northeast	of	Rockford	and	has	been	spreading	west	into	Jo	Daviess	County.	A	
deer	has	been	identified	with	the	disease	about	three	(3)	miles	south	of	Elizabeth.	At	some	time	CWD	may	
very	well	 reach	Galena.	 If	 it	 arrives,	 the	health	of	 the	entire	Galena	herd	 is	 at	 risk.	Once	 the	disease	 is	
confirmed	in	Galena,	the	IDNR	will	take	action	as	it	sees	fit.	We	need	to	be	vigilant	to	protect	the	health	of	
the	herd,	and	to	cooperate	fully	with	the	IDNR's	efforts	to	slow	the	spread	of	the	disease.	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 31 of 109



	 15

7.		Answer	the	question,	“Is	There	a	Problem?”	and,	if	so,	what	is	it?	
	
There	is	a	problem	in	Galena	related	to	the	deer	and	other	wildlife	populations	inside	the	city	limits.	
based	on	the	following	findings:	
	
						1.		There	are	citizens	who	are	experiencing	deer	damage	to	their	property	located	inside	the	city		
											limits.	
	
						2.		There	are	accidents	along	Spring	Street	that	are	related	to	the	presence	of	deer	inside	the	city			
												limits.	
	
						3.		There	are	multiple	incidents	of	deer	being	impaled	on	fences	inside	the	city	limits.		
	
						4.		There	are	citizens	illegally	feeding	the	deer.	
	
The	committee	has	identified	the	following	items	of	disagreement	in	the	community:	
	
						1.		There	are	mixed	opinions	on	how	serious	the	problem	is.	
	
						2.		There	are	disputes	on	how	best	to	resolve	the	problem.	
	
						3.			There	is	disagreement	on	whether	or	not	the	City	Council	should	expend	public	funds	to	attempt	to		
												deal	with	the	problem.			
	
The	committee	has	learned	that:	
	
						1.	Not	all	areas	of	Galena	are	being	affected	in	the	same	way	by	the	increase	in	deer	population.		
	
						2.	There	is	a	limit	to	the	number	of	deer	that	can	live	healthily	in	any	given	area.			
	
						3.	If	the	number	of	deer	within	the	city	limits	is	not	detrimental	to	deer	health,	then	problems		
										regarding	the	deer	population	must	be	evaluated	in	consideration	of	quantified	human	tolerance.			
	
						4.	Without	an	accurate	and	accepted	means	of	counting	the	deer	inside	the	city	limits,	it	remains	a		
										difficult	task	to	define	the	problem	and	identify	fact‐based	solutions.	
	
Based	on	an	advisory	referendum	question	submitted	to	the	public	in	the	spring	election	of	2016,	the	
majority	of	voters	who	participated	in	the	election	voted	to	discourage	the	City	Council	from	expending	
public	funds	to	deal	with	wildlife	populations	inside	the	city	limits.	
	
Attached,	as	Appendix	B	is	the	updated	report	from	the	Chief	of	Police	on	deer	issues,	which	continue	to	
arise	inside	the	city	limits.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 32 of 109



	 16

8.	Investigate	how	other	communities	have	handled	the	issue.	
	
The	2015	Deer	Committee	researched	efforts	in	the	following	communities	to	deal	with	deer	population	
issues:		
	
1.	Galena	Territory	Association	(GTA)	Deer	Management	Program		presented	by	Joe	Mattingly,	GTA	CEO,	
Dave	Oldenburg,	and	Emily	Lubke.	 	The	GTA	began	an	investigation	in	1988	when		the	deer	population	
exploded	 after	 hunting	 was	 prohibited.	 	 There	 was	 extensive	 damage	 to	 landscapes,	 golf	 course,	 and	
woodland.		There	was	a	peak	of	31	vehicular/deer	accidents	in	1992.		The	GTA	explored	options	for	deer	
control	 including	 regulated	 hunting,	 bow	 and	 gun.	 	 Live	 capture	 and	 euthanasia	 as	 well	 as	 trap	 and	
relocate	 were	 looked	 at.	 	 Sharpshooting	 was	 examined	 and	 considered	 to	 be	 the	 best	 solution.	 	 The	
Illinois	Department	of	Natural	Resources	(IDNR)	recommended	a	density	of	12‐20	deer	per	square	mile	
based	on	knowledge	of	deer	health	and	fitness,	and	their	impact	on	plants,	wildlife,	and	healthy	ecological	
systems.		There	was	an	estimated	1,000	deer	in	the	10.265	square	miles	of	the	Territory.	
	
	In	 1991	 a	 sharp	 shooter	 program	 was	 begun.	 	 Safety	 was	 the	 top	 priority	 when	 considering	 culling	
methods.	 	 The	 use	 of	 a	 rifle	was	 selected	 because	 of	 its	 accuracy	 and	 range.	 	 The	 IDNR	 identified	 the	
shooting	 zones.	They	 looked	at	 the	 cover	density	 and	 selected	areas	with	 adjacent	open	areas	 safe	 for	
shooting.	 	They	avoid	rental	areas.	 	 	There	were	600	deer	culled	 the	 first	year.	 	The	cost	per	deer	was	
estimated	to	be	$150.		The	meat	is	donated	to	local	food	pantries.	
	
In	a	review	of	the	program	in	2012	it	was	determined	that	the	sharpshooter	be	more	visible	by	wearing	
an	 orange	 vest	 and	 having	 a	 flashing	 strobe	 light	 on	 the	 vehicle.	 	 Property	 owners	 are	 asked	 for	
permission	 to	 shoot	 on	 their	 property	 and	 to	 access	 their	 property	 to	 pick	 up	 dead	 deer.	 	 They	 have	
maintained	the	same	program	since	1991,	culling	every	year	for	consistency.	 	There	are	50	to	100	deer	
culled	annually.		Every	year	an	aerial	count	is	done	when	there	is	at	least	4”	of	snow	on	the	ground.	
	
The	program	objectives	are	to	maintain	the	number	of	deer/vehicle	accidents	at	 less	 than	20	per	year,	
maintain	 deer	 browsing	 of	 native	 plants	 at	 less	 than	 20%,	 and	maintain	 deer	 damage	 to	 ornamental	
plantings	 such	 that	 75%	 of	 residents	 are	 satisfied,	 and	 promote	 an	 understanding	 of	 the	 need	 for	
management.		Every	three	years	a	browse	study	of	the	woodland	areas	is	done.		Ongoing	efforts	continue	
to	educate	the	community	about	the	program,	emphasizing	not	feeding	the	deer	or	putting	out	salt	licks.		
Overall,	the	GTA	believes	that	their	management	program	has	been	a	success.	
	
More	 info	 about	 their	 program	 can	 be	 found	 on	 our	 deer	 committee	website	 dated	 12/7/2015	which	
includes:		GTA	deer	culling	costs,	browsing	data,	and	culling	maps.	
	
2.	Apple	Canyon	Lake	(ACL)	‐	 	 Jim	Petelle	and	John	Schereson,	members	of	 the	Apple	Canyon	Property	
Owners	Association,		gave	our	committee	a	report	on	their	deer	management	program	as	well	as	copies	
of	 the	 ACL	 Property	 Owners’	 Association	 Rules	 and	 Regulations	 regarding	 deer	 archery	 hunting	 in	
specified	resort	common	areas.	
	
In	 response	 to	 complaints	 about	 property	 damage	 and	 vehicular	 accidents,	 a	 deer	 management	
committee	was	 formed.	 	They	met	2	 to	3	years	before	 their	deer	management	program	was	started	 in	
2010.	 	 They	worked	with	 Doug	 Dufford,	 wildlife	 biologist,	 with	 the	 IDNR.	 	 They	 discovered	 that	 they	
should	 have	 20‐30	 deer	 per	 square	mile.	 	 Their	 territory	 is	 comprised	 of	 3.4	 square	mile	whose	 deer	
carrying	capacity	was	80‐90	deer.		They	had	four	times	that	many	deer.		
	
They	 chose	 archery	 over	 rifle	 because	 they	 felt	 the	 proximity	 to	 houses	was	 an	 issue.	 	 Their	 archery	
program	 culls	 50‐60	 deer	 per	 year	 in	 designated	 areas	 from	 elevated	 stands	 during	 regular	 hunting	

Page 33 of 109



	 17

season.		Participating	archers	adhere	to	strict	requirements	above	and	beyond	what	the	state	of	Illinois	
requires.	 	 In	 addition	 to	 their	 archery	 program	 they	 offer	 a	 youth	 archery	 program	 every	 summer	 in	
conjunction	with	the	boy	scouts.	
	
In	 their	 second	 year,	 they	did	 an	 aerial	 count,	 and	 since	 then	 they	do	 an	 annual	 roadway	 count	when	
there	 is	 snow	on	 the	ground.	 	People	drive	around	4	quadrants	 in	 the	evening	during	a	one	and	a	half	
hour	period	to	count	deer.		They	still	have	twice	the	number	of	deer	they	should	have	according	to	IDNR	
recommendations.	
	
They	offer	a	public	presentation	about	their	deer	management	program	every	year	to	educate	the	public	
and	to	get	their	buy	–in	for	their	program.		They	believe	that	a	culling	program	must	be	maintained	every	
year	to	be	effective.		There	are	fewer	vehicular	accidents	and	less	property	damage.		Based	on	comments	
received	at	 their	meetings	and	 in	 their	paper,	The	Apple	Core,	 the	program	seems	to	be	generally	well	
received.	They	collected	$2,500	‐	$3,000	in	hunter	fees,	and	the	program	cost	was	$1,200.	
	
More	detailed	information	can	be	found	on	our	deer	committee	website:	minutes	from	our	12/16/2015	
meeting,	ACL	Rules	and	Regulations	for	Hunting	were	listed	as	ACL	Management	Program.	
	
Also	listed	on	our	deer	committee	website	is	information	from	other	communities	that	we	investigated:	
	
3.	Austin,	Texas	
In	2009	Austin	became	the	largest	city	in	the	U.S.	to	become	a	certified,	wildlife	habitat	by	the	National	
Wildlife	Federation.	 	 In	2011	 they	enacted	a	 “no‐kill”	policy	declaring	 “The	City	of	Austin	will	 practice	
tolerance	 and	 co‐existence	 with	 deer	 and	will	 promote	 this	 policy	 through	 a	multi‐tiered	 program	 of	
education,	awareness	and	humane,	non‐lethal	conflict	management.”		Education	on	methods	of	exclusion,	
deterrents	and	conflict	management	with	white‐tail	deer	and	other	wildlife	is	provided.	
	
Austin	 has	 931,830	 residents	 so	 it	 does	 not	 compare	 to	 Galena,	 but	 the	 Austin	 Animal	 Advisory	
Commission	made	a	number	of	recommendations	that	could	be	very	useful	in	helping	Galena	deal	with	
our	deer	population.		That	information	is	also	on	the	deer	committee	website.	
	
4.	Lincolnshire,	Illinois		
Lincolnshire	is	a	northern	suburb	of	Chicago	with	a	population	of	7,275.		They	previously	culled	deer,	but	
discontinued	in	2011	since	their	data	suggested	they	didn’t	need	to	cull.	 	Before	2011	they	compiled	an	
annual	report	of	residential	complaints,	plant	data	(browsing	numbers),	deer/vehicle	accidents,	and	they	
paid	a	natural	areas	maintenance	contractor	to	collect	browsing	data.	
	
5.	Clifton,	Ohio	
Clifton	 is	 part	 of	 Cincinnati.	 	 They	 are	 engaged	 in	 a	 5	 year	 pilot	 study	 on	 a	 non‐lethal	 fertility	 control	
program	that	began	in	2014.		In		their	first	year	41	does	were	sterilized	and	tagged	(an	estimated	90%	of	
their	total	herd)	and	3	male	fawns	were	tagged.		Their	hope	is	to	control	their	deer	population	through	
sterilization.	 	 They	 set	 up	 bait	 stations,	 and	 performed	 field	 surgery.	 	 Many	 people	 including	 wildlife	
biologists,	veterinarians,	and	volunteers	were	involved	in	the	first	event.	 	This	year	for	two	weeks	after	
the	event	strategically	located	cameras	will	take	thousands	of	photos	which	will	be	examined	by	wildlife	
biologists	to	estimate	with	high	reliability	the	number	of	deer.		The	costs	were	not	clearly	shown,	but	this	
year	 they	 expected	 the	 costs	 to	 be	 $15,000	 more	 than	 last	 year	 and	 they	 were	 seeking	 grants	 and	
donations	to	cover	the	expense.	
	

Page 34 of 109



	 18

Their	 2014	 deer	 estimate	 was	 60‐65	 deer,	 but	 they	 felt	 they	 had	 double	 that	 amount.	 	 Again,	 this	
community	is	not	very	relative	to	Galena,	but	their	research	is	worth	following	even	though	they	are	in	
the	beginning	stages.	
	
6.	Rochester	Hills,	Michigan		
Rochester	 Hills	 created	 a	 program	 to	 reduce	 deer‐car	 collisions	 including	 highly‐visible	 deer	warning	
signs	 at	 collision	 hot	 spots,	 removal	 of	 sightline	 barriers,	 and	 a	 "Don't	 Veer	 for	 Deer"	 educational	
campaign.	Over	several	years,	they	achieved	a	25%	reduction	in	deer‐vehicle	collisions	in	spite	of	a	34%	
increase	in	the	deer	population.	The	program	costs	$2,000	per	year.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 35 of 109



	 19

9.	Options	to	reduce	the	number	of	deer	in	herd	if	determined	appropriate.																	
	
If	the	herd	needs	to	be	reduced	there	are	several	options.	Some	are	more	practical	than	others.	We	heard	
from	many	sources.	These	are	some	of	the	things	that	have	been	tried:	
	
1.	Attempts	 to	capture	and	relocate	deer	have	been	shown	to	be	deadly	 to	 the	deer.	They	struggle	and	
injure	themselves	and	need	to	be	put	down.	
	
2.	Capturing	and	sterilizing	or	neutering	deer	is	much	too	expensive	and	is	 ineffective	in	reducing	deer	
population.	
	
3.	Sharpshooters	have	been	used	in	the	Galena	Territory.		They	have	been	successful	in	reducing	the	herd.	
The	Territory	herd	is	now	healthy	and	sustainable.	Only	proven	marksmen	can	be	used,	in	specified	firing	
zones.	Due	to	a	lack	of	natural	predators,	the	culling	needs	to	be	a	long‐term	program	to	control	the	herd.	
Also	because	of	IDNR	rules	sharpshooter	culling	is	expensive.	
	
4.	Bow	Hunters	are	used	in	many	communities.	They	utilize	normal	hunting	seasons.	Apple	Canyon	Lake	
actually	makes	money	through	bow	hunting.	Each	hunter	has	to	pass	safety	and	accuracy	tests,	then	pay	
for	deer	permits.	They	can	keep	and	process	the	deer	they	shoot.	For	separation	each	hunter	is	assigned	a	
specific	area.	Following	the	rules	implemented	by	Apple	Canyon	Lake	has	resulted	in	a	safe	and	effective	
deer	management	program.	
	
5.	Re‐introducing	natural	predators	to	Galena	can	also	reduce	the	deer	population.	This	does	not	require	
bringing	predators	 to	Galena.	They	 are	 already	being	 attracted	 to	 the	 area.	 It	 only	 involves	 not	 taking	
steps	to	stop	them.	
	
6.	 The	Galena	 herd	 is	 already	 being	 reduced	 involuntarily.	 Deer	 are	 killed	 in	 vehicle	 accidents	 and	 by	
being	impaled	on	fences.			
	
7.	 Plants	 that	 deer	 like	 to	 eat	 are	 getting	 scarcer	 in	 Galena.	 Some	 people	 are	 actively	 planting	 deer	
resistant	plants.	Others	are	not	replacing	plants	that	have	been	over	browsed	by	deer.	Either	way	there	is	
less	for	deer	to	eat.	Reducing	the	food	supply	could	result	in	some	deer	leaving	the	city.	Additional	benefit	
will	 be	 derived	 from	 plantings	 that	 do	 not	 attract	 deer	 and	 are	 not	 a	 useful	 food	 source	 for	 the	 deer	
population.	
	
8.	Stricter	municipal	ordinance	prohibiting	the	feeding	of	deer	within	the	city	limits.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 36 of 109



	 20

10.	Committee	Recommended	Deer	Management	Program	
	
Based	on	the	above‐itemized	findings,	the	committee	recommends	the	following	options	to	the	City	
Council	and	urges	adoption	of	as	many	as	the	council	deems	appropriate	to	assist	in	managing	deer	and	
other	wildlife	in	the	city	limits:	
	
1.	Count	the	deer		
The	City	should:		

 Conduct	an	aerial	deer	count,	working	in	conjunction	with	the	Galena	Territory	Association's	deer	
count.		

 Evaluate	the	number	of	deer	counted	against	the	20	deer	per	square	mile	reference	point.		
 Estimate	the	degree	of	accuracy	of	the	driving	count	for	future	counts.		
 Conduct	annual	driving	counts	on	a	regular	basis.		
 Conduct	an	aerial	count	again	in	2	years	(winter	2018‐19)	if	the	number	of	deer‐vehicle	accidents	

in	the	2018	calendar	year	exceeds	20.		
	
2.	Educate	Citizens	
The	City	should:	

 Contract	with	the	University	of	Illinois	Extension	to	provide	natural	resource	education	
presentations	at	City	Hall	each	winter	that	are	free	to	the	public.	Topics	might	be	drawn	from	
those	in	the	Extension's	Master	Naturalist	program,	such	as	"Urban	Areas	and	Wildlife,"	
Agricultural	Lands	and	Wildlife,"	"Understanding	the	Natural	World,"	and	"Understanding	Prairie	
in	the	Prairie	State."	The	Master	Gardeners	program	on	Deer	Resistant	Plantings	should	be	
repeated	on	a	regular	basis.	Include	education	along	the	lines	of	the	"Veer	for	Deer"	program	used	
successfully	in	Rochester,	MI.	

	
 Invite	the	formation	of	a	citizen	advisory	committee	to	make	ongoing	recommendations	to	the	City	

Council	on	natural	resource	issues	(including	wildlife	management),	and	to	assist	in	educating	the	
public	on	natural	resource	matters.	

	
 Offer	a	survey	to	the	citizens	each	year	(see	recommended	survey	in	Appendix	D).		Evaluate	the	

number	of	responses	to	the	question,	"Are	levels	of	deer	damage	tolerable?"	
	
3.	Install	Deer	Warning	Signage	
The	Illinois	Department	of	Transportation	will	not	install	deer	warning	signs,	but	the	City	may	do	so	in	
consultation	with	the	department.	The	City	should	install	deer‐warning	signs	along	roadways	with	high	
deer‐vehicle	incident	rates	(e.g.	Gear	St.,	U.S.	20,	Franklin	St.,	and	Stagecoach	Trail	‐	see	Fig.	3,	p.	7).	
	
4.	Maintain	Deer	Health	
The	City	should:	

 Follow	the	progression	of	Chronic	Wasting	Disease	in	deer	in	Jo	Daviess	County	and	cooperate	
with	the	Illinois	Department	of	Natural	Resources	should	infected	animals	be	documented	in	or	
near	the	City.		

	
 Manage	the	deer	population	by	encouraging	increased	hunting	on	private	properties	surrounding	

the	City	of	Galena,	and	open	City	properties	on	the	periphery	of	the	City	(e.g.	Gateway	Park,	the	
acreage	north	of	Indian	Ridge	subdivision)	to	hunting	during	the	regular	hunting	season.	

	

Page 37 of 109



	 21

 Determine	the	number	of	deer	within	the	city	limits	(through	aerial	or	driving	counts,	or	both)	per	
square	mile	each	year.	If	the	number	is	found	to	exceed	20	deer	per	square	mile,	consider	special	
City	permission	working	with	the	IDNR	to	implement	a	bow‐hunting	program	in	select	areas	
within	the	city.	Neither	the	hunters	interviewed	nor	the	committee	recommends	using	firearms	
within	the	city	limits	to	reduce	the	deer	population.	The	Apple	Canyon	Lake	program	for	testing	
and	certifying	bow	hunters	is	a	good	reference.	The	City	of	Dubuque's	program	for	identifying	
areas	within	the	City	limits	suitable	for	deer	hunting	is	a	good	reference.	

	
5.	Improve	the	Ability	to	Enforce	the	Prohibition	of	Deer	Feeding	
The	City	of	Galena	should	pass	an	ordinance	that	will	assist	law	enforcement	in	stopping	the	feeding	of	
deer	inside	the	City	limits.		Recommended	sample	ordinance	language	is	provided	in	Appendix	E.	
	
6.	Monitor	Overall	Situation	
The	City	should	annually	review	information	about	the	number	of	deer,	number	and	nature	of	deer	
incidents,	status	of	Chronic	Wasting	Disease	in	the	area,	and	citizen	opinion.	A	sample	annual	report	is	
provided	as	Appendix	F.	
	
7.	Evaluate	the	Galena	Deer	Management	Plan	
In	3	years	(December	2019)	evaluate	the	effectiveness	of	the	Galena	Deer	Management	Plan	as	written	
and	modify	as	appropriate.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 38 of 109



	 22

11.		Cost	Implications	and	staff	time	for	deer	population	management	
	
Costs:	
1.	Count	the	deer		
The	cost	of	a	driving	count	would	be	minimal	if	conducted	by	volunteers	(similar	to	the	annual	bird	count	
conducted	by	the	Jo	Daviess	Conservation	Foundation).	The	cost	of	the	aerial	count	=	$1,500.	If	an	aerial	
count	is	conducted	once	every	two	years,	the	maximum	annual	expense	at	current	rates	would	be	$750	
per	year.	
		
2.	Educate	Citizens	
The	University	of	Illinois	Extension	will	provide	2‐hour	programs	that	are	free	to	citizens	as	desired	by	
the	City,	will	promote	those	programs,	and	will	handle	online	registrations	for	the	programs.	They	would	
ask	the	City	to	host	the	programs	and	help	promote	them.		The	cost	per	program	event	would	be	in	the	
range	of	$150‐$250.	Assuming	three	programs	at	the	higher	cost,	the	annual	expense	would	be	$750.	
	
There	are	minimal	anticipated	costs	for	the	formation	of	a	citizen	advisory	committee	to	make	ongoing	
recommendations	to	the	City	Council	on	natural	resource	issues.		
	
An	online	survey	(e.g.	Survey	Monkey)	would	be	free.	There	would	be	some	additional	expense	for	city	
staff	to	analyze	the	data.	
	
The	cost	for	an	annual	mailing	of	the	survey	including	an	addressed	return	envelope	to	1900	households	
is	approximately	$2,000.	There	would	be	additional	expense	for	the	city	staff	to	compile	and	analyze	the	
survey	data.		
	
3.	Install	Deer	Warning	Signage	
The	purchase	and	installation	price	for	a	standard	sign	is	approximately	$300	per	sign,	and	the	Police	
Department	should	identify	appropriate	locations.	
	
4.	Maintain	Deer	Health	
There	is	no	cost	involved	in	following	the	progression	of	Chronic	Wasting	Disease	in	deer	in	Jo	Daviess	
County	and	cooperating	with	the	Illinois	Department	of	Natural	Resources	should	infected	animals	be	
documented	in	or	near	the	City	beyond	the	minimal	staff	time	required	to	accomplish	this.	
	
5.	Improve	the	Ability	to	Enforce	the	Prohibition	of	Deer	Feeding	
The	ordinance	should	allow	for	clear	enforcement	of	the	prohibition	on	feeding	deer.	Revenue	may	be	
generated	through	the	collection	of	fines.		
	
6.	Monitor	Overall	Situation	
A	sample	annual	report	is	provided	as	Appendix	F.	There	is	no	cost	involved	in	putting	together	the	
annual	report	beyond	the	minimal	staff	time	required	to	accomplish	this.	
	
7.	Evaluate	the	Galena	Deer	Management	Plan	
There	is	no	cost	involved	in	evaluating	the	Galena	Deer	Management	Plan	beyond	the	minimal	staff	time	
required	to	accomplish	this.	
	
	
	

	

Page 39 of 109



	 23

The	Committee	recommends	the	following	ACTION	PLAN:	

Winter	2016‐17	

‐	Conduct	aerial	count	in	conjunction	with	Galena	Territory	Association	

‐	Contract	with	University	of	Illinois	Extension	to	provide	three	educational	programs	

‐	Adopt	ordinance	language	regarding	prohibition	of	feeding	deer	

‐	Offer	Citizen	Survey	

Summer	2017	

‐	Install	deer‐crossing	signs	in	strategic	locations	

Winter	2017‐18	

‐	Conduct	driving	count	

‐	Work	with	landowners	just	outside	the	city	limits	to	increase	hunting	on	their	properties.	

‐	Open	City	properties	on	the	periphery	of	the	community	to	hunting	(e.g.	Gateway	Park,	the	area	north	of	
Sproule	Lane)	

‐	Contract	with	University	of	Illinois	Extension	to	provide	three	educational	programs	

‐	Offer	Citizen	Survey	

Winter	2018‐19	

‐	Evaluate	number	of	deer‐vehicle	collisions	

‐	If	deer‐vehicle	collisions	are	over	20,	conduct	aerial	count	

‐	If	deer‐vehicle	collisions	are	under	20,	conduct	driving	count	

‐	Work	with	landowners	just	outside	the	city	limits	to	increase	hunting	on	their	properties.	

‐	Open	City	properties	on	the	periphery	of	the	community	to	hunting	(e.g.	Gateway	Park,	the	area	north	of	
Sproule	Lane)	

‐	Contract	with	University	of	Illinois	Extension	to	provide	three	educational	programs.	

‐	Offer	Citizen	Survey	

	

	

Page 40 of 109

MMORAN
Typewritten Text



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS

DEER POPULATION CONTROL ACTIVITY REPORT: February 9, 2015

Date Time Out Time In Total Hours Employee Department Vehicle Mileage  Temperature Weather Location Shots Fired  Doe Buck Tag # Notes

1‐1‐‐1‐13‐15 2.00 Bill Salzmann #5 10 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA Met with property owners in shooting areas
1‐1‐‐1‐13‐15 2.00 Bill Salzmann Police #5 8 NA NA 1‐4 NA NA NA NA Baiting

1‐14‐15 4:15 PM 5:00 PM 0.45 Bill Salzmann Police #2 4.9 24 Clear NA NA NA NA NA

Met with Hoogerwerf of DNR regarding feeding 
law.  Checked locations where residents reported 
to be feeding.

1‐20‐15 8:00 AM 10:30 AM 2.50 Bill Salzmann Police #5/PW pickup 27.5 30 Clear 1‐4 0
Saw deer at feeding locations, did not take shots

1‐26‐15 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 1.00                     Mark Moran  Administration NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA Prepare activity report template

1‐28‐15 8:00 AM 12:00 PM 4.00                     Bill Salzmann Police #5 8.3 25 Clear 4 1
Deer wounded but not recovered.  Tracked 
unsuccessfully. 

1‐28‐15 8:00 AM 12:00 PM Bill Salzmann Police #5 25 Clear 2 1 Doe(F) NA 134867
Field dress and transported to Territory 
refrigerated storage

1‐28‐15 11:00 AM 11:30 AM 0.50                     Kevin Sinagra Public Works NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Met with Bill Salzmann to give him access to 
Gator.

1‐28‐15 8:00 AM 11:00 AM 3.00                     Mark Moran  Administration NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA Field emails and calls regarding culling

1‐29‐15 8:00 AM 4:30 PM 1.00                     Mark Moran  Administration NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Field emails, calls, and office visits regarding 
culling

1‐29‐15 8:00 AM 4:30 PM 1.00                     Mark Moran  Administration NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Field emails, calls, and office visits regarding 
culling

2‐2‐‐2‐9‐15 8:00 AM 4:30 PM 6.00                     Mark Moran  Administration NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Field emails, calls, and office visits regarding 
culling

TOTAL 23.45                   58.7 2 1 0

DEER POPULATION CONTROL COSTS

Employee Rate Employee Cost Vehicle Cost
Ammunition 

Cost
Processing 

Cost Total Cost
   

$37.04 $74.08 $5.60 $79.68
$37.04 $74.08 $4.48 $78.56
$37.04 $16.67 $2.74 $19.41
$37.04 $92.60 $15.40 $108.00
$57.72 $57.72 $57.72
$37.04 $148.16 $4.65 $120.00 $272.81

$25.99 $13.00 $13.00
$57.72 $173.16 $173.16
$57.72 $57.72 $57.72
$57.72 $57.72 $57.72
$57.72 $346.32 $346.32

TOTAL $1,111.22 $32.87 $120.00 $0.00 $1,264.10

Notes:

2.  $0.56 per mile for vehicle cost. 

1. Employee Rate includes: base wage, Social Security, Medicare, retirement, health insurance and dental 

Page 41 of 109

MMORAN
Typewritten Text
Appendix A: 2015 Deer Population Activity Report

MMORAN
Typewritten Text

MMORAN
Typewritten Text
  

MMORAN
Typewritten Text

MMORAN
Typewritten Text

MMORAN
Typewritten Text

MMORAN
Typewritten Text

MMORAN
Typewritten Text

MMORAN
Typewritten Text

MMORAN
Typewritten Text
24



	 25

Appendix	B:		Galena	Police	Department	Deer	Incident	Report	Tables	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Page 42 of 109



	 26

	

	

	

	

	

	
	

Page 43 of 109



	 27

Appendix	C:	Driving	Deer	Count	Methodology	
	
At	the	January	2016	Deer	Committee	meeting,	representatives	from	the	Apple	Canyon	Lake	Property	
Owners	Association	explained	that	after	having	completed	an	initial	aerial	count	of	the	deer	in	the	resort,	
they	have	adopted	an	ongoing	driving	count	system.	In	order	to	provide	a	reference	point	for	trying	to	
answer	the	question	‐	“How	many	deer	are	there	in	Galena?”	‐	a	program	for	driving	around	town	and	
counting	the	deer	has	been	created.	The	following	methodology	has	been	established	to	eliminate	as	
many	variables	as	possible:	
	

 Beth	Baranski	and	Bill	Grosshans	have	agreed	to	conduct	the	driving	counts	together	in	order	to	
ensure	consistency	and	to	confirm	each	other’s	deer	sightings.	Beth	is	a	member	of	the	Deer	
Committee,	and	Bill	is	a	regular	audience	member	at	Deer	Committee	meetings	and	follows	the	
proceedings	closely.		

	
 The	same	route	is	driven	through	Galena	each	time.	The	route	takes	about	an	hour	and	30	

minutes.	

	
 As	deer	are	spotted,	the	number	of	deer	is	marked	on	the	appropriate	map	location	and	circled.	If	

Beth	and/or	Bill	feel	there	is	any	question	that	deer	may	have	moved	and	might	be	double‐
counted,	they	are	not	included	in	the	total.		

	
 The	count	is	conducted	only	when	both	Beth	and	Bill	are	available,	either	during	the	morning	or	

evening	twilight.	The	morning	counts	are	begun	about	5‐10	minutes	after	morning	civil	twilight	
and	the	evening	counts	are	started	about	one	hour	and	thirty‐to‐thirty‐five	minutes	before	the	end	
of	evening	civil	twilight	(referencing	times	at	sunrisesunset.com).		

	
 The	date,	time	of	start	and	finish,	deer	count,	and	any	comments	are	recorded	on	the	map	and	

signed	by	both	Bill	and	Beth.	
	
This	regular	count	is	being	conducted	with	the	thought	that	it	may	help	frame	the	general	number	of	deer	
in	town,	could	help	us	understand	seasonal	changes,	and	also	may	help	identify	specific	locations	that	
tend	to	have	more	deer	than	others.	It	will	be	interesting	to	see	how	the	driving	counts	done	as	winter	
approaches	compare	with	a	winter	aerial	count	(if	one	is	conducted).	

Page 44 of 109



	 28

Appendix	D:	Survey	Regarding	Wildlife	in	Galena	
	

1.	Do	you	see	deer	in	your	yard?								____Yes								____No					
	
	

2.	Do	the	deer	cause	damage	to	the	landscaping	and/or	gardens	on	your	property?									____	Yes	 ____No	
	
	

3.	Are	current	levels	of	deer	damage	tolerable?	 			____	Yes	 ____No	
	
	

4.	What	measures	have	you	taken	to	“deer‐proof”	your	property?	
	 a.	Fencing	
	 b.	Deer‐resistant	plants	
	 c.	Repellents/sprays	
	 d.	Visual	repellents	
	 e.	Motion‐detection	sprinklers	
	 f.	Other		Describe	________________________________________________________________________________	
	 g.	None	
	
	

5.	Would	you	support	controlled,	safe,	bow	and	arrow	culling	of	deer	inside	Galena	city	limits?	
	
					___Yes					___No	
	
	

6.		What	other	wildlife	do	you	see	on	your	property?		Types		_________________________________________	
	
	
	

7.		Do	such	wildlife	cause	damage	to	your	property?		Describe		_______________________________________	
	
	
	

8.		Which	Galena	Precinct	do	you	vote	in?	
____East	Galena	 	
____Rawlins	
____West	Galena	I	
____West	Galena	II	
____West	Galena	III	
	

	

9.	Other	comments?	

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________	

	

	

	

Page 45 of 109



	 29

Appendix	E:	Ordinance	to	Deal	With	Feeding	Deer	Inside	the	City	Limits	

The	2015	Deer	Committee	(committee)	has	discussed	the	issue	of	the	difficulty	of	enforcing	an	ordinance	
on	feeding	deer	with	the	police	department	and	the	City	Attorney.		It	is	clear	that	there	are	difficulties	in	
enforcement	 of	 the	 statute	 of	 the	 State	 of	 Illinois	 related	 to	 illegally	 feeding	 deer.	 	 It	 seems	 that	 the	
problem	is	proof	of	intent	to	feed	the	deer.	
	
The	committee	hereby	recommends	that	the	City	Council	discuss	with	the	City	Attorney	under	its	police	
power	 authority	 using	Chapter	 95	 of	 the	 City	 Code	 of	Ordinances	 entitled	Nuisances.	 	 Specifically,	 the	
committee	 recommends	 that	 Section	 95.01	 of	 the	 code	 be	 amended	 to	 add	 the	 following	 paragraph	
thereto:	
	

	 (K)	To	knowingly,	purposefully	or	 intentionally	disburse	 food	on	 the	ground,	at	
any	feeding	station,	 in	a	feeding	device,	or	 in	a	container	of	any	kind,	or	provide	a	salt	or	
mineral	lick,	or	by	any	other	means	provide	food	to	deer	on	any	public	or	private	property.		
A	person	 shall	be	deemed	 to	have	knowingly,	purposely	or	 intentionally	 fed	deer,	 cause	
deer	to	be	fed	or	provided	food	to	deer,	if	the	person	places,	or	allows	to	be	placed,	wheat,	
pellets,	livestock	feed,	corn	in	any	form,	fruit,	vegetables,	hay	or	alfalfa,	human	food	scraps,	
any	form	of	wildlife	seed,	birdseed	or	livestock	feed,	or	any	other	edible	matter	that	deer	
will	consume	on	the	ground	or	within	the	reach	of	deer.		“Within	the	reach	of	deer”	shall	be	
defined	as	having	been	 located	 less	than	 five	(5)	 feet	above	the	ground	unless	such	 items	
are	 screened	 or	protected	 in	 a	manner	 that	prevents	deer	 from	 feeding	 on	 them..	 	This	
prohibition	shall	include	allowing	residue	that	deer	will	consume	to	remain	underneath	a	
birdfeeder.	 	 This	 prohibition	 shall	 not	 include	 live	 vegetation	 such	 as	 ornamental	
landscaping,	 flowers,	 trees,	 vines,	 vegetable	 gardens,	 edible	matter	 located	 either	 in	 an	
enclosed	 building	 or	 stored	 in	 a	 securely	 sealed	 package,	 or	 unmodified	 commercially	
purchased	bird	feeders	or	their	equivalent	when	placed	out	of	the	reach	of	the	deer.	

	 	
The	 committee	 further	 recommends	 that	 the	 Council	 amend	 Section	 95.99	 (A)	 to	 add	 the	 following	
language	following	the	word	“misdemeanor”	therein:	
	
“except	 that	 Section	 (K)	 thereof	 shall	 be	 punished	 as	 provided	 in	 Section	 10.99.”	 (This	 section	
authorizes	a	fine	of	up	to	$750).	
	
It	is	the	view	of	the	committee	that	publication	of	the	suggested	amendments	to	the	Nuisance	ordinance	
will	lead	to	stopping	any	feeding	of	deer	within	the	city	limits.	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 46 of 109



	 30

Appendix	F:	Sample	Annual	Report	for	Galena	Deer	Management	Plan	
	

Updated	information	should	be	provided	to	the	Galena	City	Council	each	year	as	a	reference	for	deer	
management	decision‐making.	
	
	
Number	of	Deer	
	
(Date:_________)	Aerial	Deer	Count:	___________________________	
	
Driving	Deer	Counts,	April	18	‐	December	5,	2016:	6‐30	deer	counted.	
Number	of	deer	per	square	mile	=	1.5	to	7.5	(6	deer/4	sq.	miles	and	30	deer/4	sq.	miles)		

	

Deer	Incidents	

	

	

	

Page 47 of 109



	 31

Chronic	Wasting	Disease	Update	

	

	

Citizen	Survey	

Number	of	surveys	received:	______	

Number	of	"Yes	and	"No"	responses	to	the	following	question:	

 Are current levels of deer damage tolerable?    ____ Yes ____No 

	

	

	

Page 48 of 109



Page 49 of 109



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    December 14, 2016   

RE:    Tax Abatement Ordinances 

 
The City has three outstanding bond issues that were used to finance various projects.   
Ordinances were adopted at the time of each bond sale to pledge sales tax and income tax 
revenues, instead of property tax, to cover the annual principal and interest payments.  When 
these alternate revenues are sufficient to make the scheduled debt payments for the year, 
the City must adopt tax abatement ordinances to inform the County Clerk that the City does 
not intend to levy property taxes for the debt payments.  With the alternate revenues 
sufficient to make the scheduled payments, I am presenting the tax abatement ordinances for 
your approval.   
 
The three bond abatement ordinances on the agenda for approval are as follows: 
 
1. Ordinance to abate taxes for 2010 sewer bonds in 2016 levy year.  Bonds refinanced debt 

on wastewater treatment plant. 
 

2. Ordinance to abate taxes for 2012A bonds in 2016 levy year.  Bonds refinanced 
downtown project debt. 

 
3. Ordinance to abate taxes for 2012B bonds in 2016 levy year.  Bonds funded part of the 

Meeker Street Bridge replacement, the solar array, and the downtown flood pump 
projects. 

 
In addition to the bond abatements, we must adopt an ordinance to abate the City share of 
the property taxes for the Palace Campground.  The campground was annexed in November 
in accordance with an annexation agreement approved by the city council.  The property tax 
abatement for the current owner was one of the conditions of annexation. 
 
I recommend you complete the first reading of these ordinances, waive the second reading, 
and adopt the ordinances as presented.   

  
 

 

Page 50 of 109



2010 Sewer Bond Abatement Ordinance 
2194835 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING CERTAIN TAXES HERETOFORE LEVIED BY THE CITY 

OF GALENA, ILLINOIS FOR THE 2010 SEWER BONDS 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

ORDINANCE abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2016 to pay 
the principal of and interest on $8,735,000 General Obligation 
Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2010, of the City of 
Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois. 

WHEREAS the City Council (the “Corporate Authorities”) of the City of Galena, Jo 

Daviess County, Illinois (the “City”), by an ordinance, adopted on the 11th day of January, 2010 

(the “Ordinance”), did provide for the issue of $8,735,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 

Revenue Source), Series 2010 (the “Bonds”), and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay 

the principal of and interest on the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS the Pledged Income Taxes (as defined in the Ordinance) have been determined 

by the Corporate Authorities to provide an amount not less than 1.25 times debt service of all 

Outstanding Bonds (as defined in the Ordinance) in the next succeeding bond year (June 30 and 

December 30); and 

WHEREAS the Pledged Sales Taxes have been deposited in the 2010 Sales Tax Alternate 

Bond Fund of the City (as defined in the Ordinance) in an amount sufficient to pay debt service 

on all outstanding Bonds in the next succeeding bond year; and 

WHEREAS it is necessary and in the best interests of the City that the tax heretofore levied 

for the year 2016 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated in its entirety; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 

County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. Abatement of Tax.  The tax heretofore levied for the year 2016 in the 

Ordinance is hereby abated in its entirety, which is the amount of $563,745.00. 

Page 51 of 109



-2- 

 Section 2. Filing of Ordinance.  Forthwith upon the adoption of this ordinance, the 

City Clerk shall file a certified copy hereof with the County Clerk of the County of Jo Daviess, 

Illinois, and it shall be the duty of said County Clerk to abate said tax levied for the year 2016 

in accordance with the provisions hereof. 

 Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith 

upon its passage by the Corporate Authorities. 
 

PASSED by the Corporate Authorities on December 27, 2016. 

APPROVED:  ____________, 2016. 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
 Mayor 

AYES: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: __________________________________________________________________ 

RECORDED in the City Records on _______________, 2016. 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Corporate Authorities on __________, 2016. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
[SEAL] 

Page 52 of 109



 

STATE OF ILLINOIS     ) 
     )  SS 
COUNTY OF JO DAVIESS  ) 

FILING CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting County Clerk 

of the County of Jo Daviess, Illinois, and as such official I do further certify that on the ___ day 

of ____________, 2017, there was filed in my office a duly certified copy of an ordinance 

entitled: 

ORDINANCE abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2016 to pay 
the principal of and interest on $8,735,000 General Obligation 
Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2010, of the City of 
Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois. 

(the “Ordinance”) duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, 

Illinois (the “City”), on the 27th day of December, 2016 and that the same has been deposited in 

the official files and records of my office. 

I do further certify that the taxes heretofore levied for the year 2016 for the payment of 

the City’s $8,735,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2010, as 

described in the Ordinance will be abated in their entirety as provided in the Ordinance. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of said County 

this ____ day of ____________, 2017. 
 
 
  ____________________________________ 

County Clerk, The County of Jo Daviess 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 

Page 53 of 109



2012 A 
2194835 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING CERTAIN TAXES HERETOFORE LEVIED BY THE CITY 

OF GALENA, ILLINOIS FOR THE 2012A BONDS 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

ORDINANCE abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2016 to pay 
the principal of and interest on $2,620,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2012A, of 
the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois. 

WHEREAS the City Council (the “Corporate Authorities”) of the City of Galena, Jo 

Daviess County, Illinois (the “City”), by an ordinance, adopted on the 11th day of June, 2012 

(the “Ordinance”), did provide for the issue of $2,620,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 

(Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2012A (the “Bonds”), and the levy of a direct annual tax 

sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS the Pledged Sales Taxes (as defined in the Ordinance) have been determined 

by the Corporate Authorities to provide an amount not less than 1.25 times debt service of all 

Outstanding Bonds and Prior Sales Tax Bonds (as defined in the Ordinance) in the next 

succeeding bond year (June 30 and December 30); and 

WHEREAS the Pledged Sales Taxes have been deposited in the 2012A Sales Tax Alternate 

Bond Fund of the City (as defined in the Ordinance) in an amount sufficient to pay debt service 

on all outstanding Bonds in the next succeeding bond year; and 

WHEREAS it is necessary and in the best interests of a the City that the tax heretofore 

levied for the year 2016 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated in its entirety; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 

County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. Abatement of Tax.  The tax heretofore levied for the year 2016 in the 

Ordinance is hereby abated in its entirety, which is the amount of $304,400.00. 

Page 54 of 109



-2- 

 Section 2. Filing of Ordinance.  Forthwith upon the adoption of this ordinance, the 

City Clerk shall file a certified copy hereof with the County Clerk of the County of Jo Daviess, 

Illinois, and it shall be the duty of said County Clerk to abate said tax levied for the year 2016 

in accordance with the provisions hereof. 

 Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith 

upon its passage by the Corporate Authorities. 
 

PASSED by the Corporate Authorities on December 27, 2016. 

APPROVED:  ____________, 2016. 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
 Mayor 

AYES: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: __________________________________________________________________ 

RECORDED in the City Records on _______________, 2016. 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Corporate Authorities on __________, 2016. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
[SEAL] 

Page 55 of 109



 

STATE OF ILLINOIS     ) 
     )  SS 
COUNTY OF JO DAVIESS  ) 

FILING CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting County Clerk 

of The County of Jo Daviess, Illinois, and as such official I do further certify that on the ___ day 

of ____________, 2017, there was filed in my office a duly certified copy of an ordinance 

entitled: 

ORDINANCE abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2016 to pay 
the principal of and interest on $2,620,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2012A, of 
the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois. 

(the “Ordinance”) duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, 

Illinois (the “City”), on the 27th day of December, 2016 and that the same has been deposited in 

the official files and records of my office. 

I do further certify that the taxes heretofore levied for the year 2016 for the payment of 

the City’s $2,620,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 

2012A, as described in the Ordinance will be abated in their entirety as provided in the 

Ordinance. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of said County 

this ____ day of ____________, 2017. 
 
 
  ____________________________________ 

County Clerk, The County of Jo Daviess 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 

Page 56 of 109



2012 B 
2194835 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING CERTAIN TAXES HERETOFORE LEVIED BY THE CITY 

OF GALENA, ILLINOIS FOR THE 2012B BONDS 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

ORDINANCE abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2016 to pay 
the principal of and interest on $945,000 General Obligation 
Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2012B, of the City of 
Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois. 

WHEREAS the City Council (the “Corporate Authorities”) of the City of Galena, Jo 

Daviess County, Illinois (the “City”), by an ordinance, adopted on the 11th day of June, 2012 

(the “Ordinance”), did provide for the issue of $945,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 

Revenue Source), Series 2012B (the “Bonds”), and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to 

pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS the Pledged Income Taxes (as defined in the Ordinance) have been determined 

by the Corporate Authorities to provide an amount not less than 1.25 times debt service of all 

Outstanding Bonds (as defined in the Ordinance) in the next succeeding bond year (June 30 and 

December 30); and 

WHEREAS the Pledged Income Taxes have been deposited in the 2012B Income Tax 

Alternate Bond Fund of the City (as defined in the Ordinance) in an amount sufficient to pay 

debt service on all outstanding Bonds in the next succeeding bond year; and 

WHEREAS it is necessary and in the best interests of the City that the tax heretofore levied 

for the year 2016 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated in its entirety; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 

County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. Abatement of Tax.  The tax heretofore levied for the year 2016 in the 

Ordinance is hereby abated in its entirety, which is the amount of $113,200.00. 

Page 57 of 109



-2- 

 Section 2. Filing of Ordinance.  Forthwith upon the adoption of this ordinance, the 

City Clerk shall file a certified copy hereof with the County Clerk of the County of Jo Daviess, 

Illinois, and it shall be the duty of said County Clerk to abate said tax levied for the year 2016 

in accordance with the provisions hereof. 

 Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith 

upon its passage by the Corporate Authorities. 
 

PASSED by the Corporate Authorities on December 27, 2016. 

APPROVED:  ____________, 2016. 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
 Mayor 

AYES: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 ___________________________________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: __________________________________________________________________ 

RECORDED in the City Records on _______________, 2016. 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Corporate Authorities on __________, 2016. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
[SEAL] 

Page 58 of 109



 

STATE OF ILLINOIS     ) 
     )  SS 
COUNTY OF JO DAVIESS  ) 

FILING CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting County Clerk 

of The County of Jo Daviess, Illinois, and as such official I do further certify that on the ___ day 

of ____________, 2017, there was filed in my office a duly certified copy of an ordinance 

entitled: 

ORDINANCE abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2016 to pay 
the principal of and interest on $945,000 General Obligation 
Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2012B, of the City of 
Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois. 

(the “Ordinance”) duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, 

Illinois (the “City”), on the 27th day of December, 2016 and that the same has been deposited in 

the official files and records of my office. 

I do further certify that the taxes heretofore levied for the year 2016 for the payment of 

the City’s $945,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2012B, as 

described in the Ordinance will be abated in their entirety as provided in the Ordinance. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of said County 

this ____ day of ____________, 2017. 
 
 
  ____________________________________ 

County Clerk, The County of Jo Daviess 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 

Page 59 of 109



ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING CERTAIN TAXES HERETOFORE LEVIED BY THE CITY OF GALENA, 
ILLINOIS FOR THE PALACE CAMPGROUND 

 

WHEREAS the City Council (the “Corporate Authorities”) of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 

County,  Illinois  (the  “City”),  by  an  ordinance,  adopted  on  August  8,  2016,  authorized  the 

execution  of  an  annexation  agreement  between  the  City  and  Patrick McCarthy  and  Kristine 

McCarthy (the “Owner”); and 

WHEREAS on September 8, 2016, the City and the Owner entered into a legal and binding 

annexation  agreement  for 31.88  acres of property  (the  “Property”)  commonly  known as  the 

Palace Campground, Parcel Identification Numbers 13‐000‐079‐07, 13‐000‐079‐06, and 13‐000‐

105‐06, and as described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made part hereof; and 

WHEREAS as part of  the annexation agreement,  the City agreed  to abate on an annual 

basis  the  full City portion of  the property  taxes  for  the Property  in an amount not  to exceed 

$40,000 or 20 years, whichever comes first; and 

WHEREAS said abatement is valid only for the current Owner and is not transferrable to 

any future owner of the Property; and 

WHEREAS  Illinois  State  Statute 35  ILCS 200/18‐184  authorizes municipalities  to upon  a 

majority vote of its governing authority, order the county clerk to abate any portion of its taxes 

on any property that is the subject of an annexation agreement between the municipality and 

the property owner; and  

NOW,  THEREFORE,  Be  It Ordained  by  the City Council  of  the City  of Galena,  Jo Daviess 

County, Illinois, as follows: 

Page 60 of 109



-2- 

  Section 1.  Abatement of Tax.  The City of Galena hereby orders the Jo Daviess County 

Clerk to abate one hundred percent (100%) of the City of Galena property taxes for the Palace 

Campground Property for said taxes levied for the year 2016.  

  Section 2.  Filing of Ordinance.   Forthwith upon  the adoption of  this ordinance,  the 

City Clerk shall file a certified copy hereof with the County Clerk of the County of Jo Daviess, 

Illinois, and it shall be the duty of said County Clerk to abate said tax levied for the year 2016 in 

accordance with the provisions hereof. 

  Section 3.  Effective Date.   This ordinance  shall be  in  full  force  and effect  forthwith 

upon its passage by the Corporate Authorities. 
 

PASSED by the Corporate Authorities on December 27, 2016. 

APPROVED:  ____________, 2016. 
 
 

   ____________________________________ 
  Mayor 

AYES:  ___________________________________________________________________ 

  ___________________________________________________________________ 

NAYS:  ___________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:  __________________________________________________________________ 

RECORDED in the City Records on _______________, 2016. 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Corporate Authorities on __________, 2016. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
[SEAL] 

Page 61 of 109



 

STATE OF ILLINOIS       ) 
       )  SS 
COUNTY OF JO DAVIESS       ) 

FILING CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting County Clerk 

of the County of Jo Daviess, Illinois, and as such official I do further certify that on the ___ day 

of  ____________,  2017,  there was  filed  in my  office  a  duly  certified  copy  of  an  ordinance 

entitled: 

AN  ORDINANCE  ABATING  CERTAIN  TAXES  HERETOFORE  LEVIED  BY  THE  CITY  OF  GALENA, 

ILLINOIS FOR THE PALACE CAMPGROUND 

 (the “Ordinance”) duly adopted by  the City Council of  the City of Galena,  Jo Daviess County, 

Illinois (the “City”), on the 27th day of December, 2016 and that the same has been deposited in 

the official files and records of my office. 

I do further certify that the City of Galena property taxes heretofore levied for the year 

2016 for the Palace Campground, as described in the Ordinance will be abated in their entirety 

as provided in the Ordinance. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of said County this 

____ day of ___________________, 2017. 
 
 
   ____________________________________ 

County Clerk, The County of Jo Daviess 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 

Page 62 of 109



EX
HI

BI
T 

A
Page 63 of 109



 

 
     

 

 

City of Galena, Illinois 
 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Fiscal Years 2018 – 2022   

 

“Planned expenditures for systematically 
constructing, maintaining, upgrading and 
replacing the community’s physical 
plant”   

 
 

DRAFT 1 
December 27, 2016 

 
Mayor Terry Renner 

 
Alderpersons: 

 
 Pam Bernstein 
Charles Fach 
 Robert Hahn 
Jerry Kieffer 
Todd Lincoln 

Jerry Westemeier 
 

 

City Administrator, Mark Moran 

Page 64 of 109



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  Reference Page
 
The Capital Improvement Plan   

   
1 

 
A Capital Improvement Defined   

   
1 

 
Developing the Galena CIP   

   
2 

 
Individual Project Descriptions   

 
A1 

 
7 

 
Evaluation of Projects Using Criteria   

 
B1 

 
19 

 
Recommended Capital Improvement Plan   

 
C1 

 
21 

 
 

   

APPENDICIES     
 
Appendix A.  5‐Year Street Improvement Program   

 
APX. A 

 
23 

 
Appendix A1.  5‐Year Street Improvement Program Maps   

 
APX. A1 

 
24 

 
Appendix A2.  5‐Year Alley Improvement Plan  

 
APX. A2 

 
29 

 
Appendix B.  Non‐Home Rule Sales Tax (1/2%) Street Program (Completed Projects)   

 
APX. B 

 
30 

 
Appendix C:  Non‐Home Rule Sales Tax (1/2%) Projected Fund Balance    

 
APX. C 

 
31 

 
Appendix D.  Public Works Rolling Stock Plan   

 
APX. D 

 
32 

 
Appendix E.  Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan  

 
APX. E 

 
33 

 
Appendix F.  Police Department Rolling Stock Plan   

 
APX. F 

 
34 

 
Appendix G.  Water and Sewer Department Rolling Stock Plan   

 
APX. G 

 
35 

 
Appendix H.  Swimming Pool Maintenance and Improvement Plan 

 
APX. H 

 
36 

 
Appendix I.  Turner Hall Maintenance and Improvement Plan 

 
APX. I 

 
37 

Page 65 of 109



THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 
A capital improvement plan (CIP) is a multi‐year schedule of municipal improvements.  The schedule usually 

covers a period of five or six years, but may extend to 10 years and beyond.  The Galena CIP spans a five‐year 

period  beginning May  1,  2017  (Fiscal  Year  2017‐18).    This  plan  sets  forth  the  proposed  expenditures  for 

systematically  constructing,  maintaining,  upgrading  and  replacing  the  community’s  physical  plant  or 

infrastructure,  and  includes  vehicles  and  other  mobile  equipment.    Capital  improvement  projects  are 

typically major, infrequent expenditures, such as the construction of a new facility or rehabilitation or major 

repair of an existing facility.  With the relatively small size of our community and budget, this CIP recognizes a 

project as small as $10,000 as a capital project.    Individual projects  from the adopted plan should become 

part of the capital budget for their respective departments.   

 

In order  to be useful as a  tool  for budgeting and sound  financial management,  the plan must be updated 

annually by reviewing existing projects, proposing new projects and extending the program by an additional 

year.   This process should also consider the short term and  long‐term effects of the expenditures and any 

associated debt on fund balances and cash flow for operations.  The CIP is considered essential for managing 

and coordinating the efficient expenditure of Galena’s public resources. 

  
A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT DEFINED 
 
A capital improvement project is defined as a major expenditure that includes one or more of the following: 

 
1. Any acquisition of land for a public purpose; 
 
2. Any construction of a new facility (e.g., a public building, water lines, pavilion etc…) or an addition to, 

or extension of, such a facility; 
 
3. A  rehabilitation  (i.e.,  something which  is  infrequent and would not be  considered annual or other 

recurrent maintenance) or major repair of all or a part of a building,  its grounds, or a facility, or of 
equipment, provided that the cost is $10,000 or more and the improvement will have a useful life of 
10 years or more; 

 
4. Purchase or major equipment (i.e., items with a cost – individually or in total – of $10,000 or more), 

which have a useful life of five years or more, including vehicles (rolling stock) if part of a systematic 
replacement plan; 

 
5. Any  planning,  feasibility,  engineering,  or  capital  design  study  related  to  an  individual  capital 

improvement project or  to a program  that  is  implemented  through  individual capital  improvement 
projects. 

Page 66 of 109



 
 
DEVELOPING THE GALENA CIP 
 
The necessity of a CIP was identified in 1991 as a recommendation of the Galena Comprehensive Plan.  The 

city’s  first  CIP  was  developed  in  1999  and  has  been  largely  implemented.    In  2003,  the  Galena 

Comprehensive Plan called for the update of the CIP and in 2004 the city council identified the CIP update as 

one of the top priorities during the visioning and four‐year goal setting process.  The CIP was again updated 

in 2007 and each year since.   The staff and administration have made a commitment to updating the plan 

annually.    This  section  generally  describes  the  process  of  developing  the  2017  Galena  CIP  and  the 

components of the plan. 

 

Staff Involvement 

Developing  the  recommended  capital  improvement  plan was  a  lengthy, multi‐step  process.    The  process 

began with each department head identifying the projects and major purchases that he or she would like to 

see completed over the next five years in his or her respective area(s) of responsibility.   Department heads 

also estimated the cost of each project or purchase, described the relationship to other projects and assigned 

the projects a priority rating.  More than 80 projects and purchases were submitted for the five‐year period.  

Each project is described in a narrative and the estimated cost is identified in the “Attachment A:  Individual 

Project Descriptions”. 

 

Evaluating Projects 

Two separate methods were utilized in an attempt to demonstrate the relative importance of each project or 

purchase.   First, each project or purchase was reviewed against criterion ranging from health and safety to 

resource conservation.  Each criterion used is described in detail in Figure 1, “Criteria for Evaluating Capital 

Improvement  Requests”  on  the  next  page.    The  results  of  the  evaluation  are  shown  in  Attachment  B, 

“Evaluation  of Projects Using  Criteria”.    Second,  each  department  head  ranked  each  project  as  either  a 

“high”,  “medium” or  “low” priority.   Combined, both methods of evaluation were useful  for  showing  the 

relative importance or need of each project or purchase. 

Page 67 of 109



FIGURE 1.  CRITERIA FOR EVALUATING  
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT REQUESTS 

 
The  following  criteria  were  used  to  evaluate  each  of  the  proposed  capital  improvement  projects  or 
purchases.   The  results of  the evaluation  are  shown  as a matrix,  “Table 2. Evaluation of Requests Using 
Criteria”. 
 

Risk to Public Safety or Health.  To protect against a clear and possibly immediate risk to public safety 
or public health. 
 

Deteriorated Facility.  An investment that deals with a deteriorated facility or piece of equipment. The 
action  taken may be either: 1)  reconstruction or extensive  rehabilitation  to extend  its useful  life  to 
avoid or to postpone replacing it with a new and costlier one; or 2) replacement of the facility or piece 
of equipment with a new one. 
 

Systematic Replacement.  An investment that replaces or upgrades a facility or piece of equipment as 
part of a systematic replacement program. This investment assumes the equipment will be replaced at 
approximately the same level of service. Some increase in size to allow for normal growth or increased 
demand is anticipated. 
 

Improvement of Operating Efficiency.  An investment that substantially and significantly improves the 
operating  efficiency  of  a  department.  Or  an  expenditure  that  has  a  very  favorable  return  on 
investment  with  a  promise  of  reducing  existing,  or  future,  increases  in  operating  expenses  (e.g., 
introduction of a new or improved technology). 
 
Coordination.   1) An expenditure  that  is necessary  to  insure  coordination with  another CIP project 
(e.g., scheduling a sewer project to coincide with a street reconstruction project so that the street  is 
not dug up a year after  it  is completed); 2) A project  that  is necessary  to comply with requirements 
imposed by others  (e.g., a court order, a change  in  federal or state  law, an agreement with another 
governmental jurisdiction or agency); or 3) A project that meets established goals or objectives of the 
City Council and Mayor. 
 

Equitable Provision of Services, Facilities.  1) An investment that serves the special needs of a segment 
of  the community's population  identified by public policy as deserving of special attention  (e.g.,  the 
handicapped,  the  elderly,  or  low‐  and  moderate‐income  persons);  or  2)  An  investment  that, 
considering  existing  services  or  facilities,  makes  equivalent  facilities  or  services  available  to 
neighborhoods or population groups that are now undeserved in comparison with residents generally. 
 
Protection and Conservation of Resources.  1) A project that protects natural resources that are at risk 
of  being  reduced  in  amount  or  quality;  or  2)  A  project  that  protects  the  investment  in  existing 
infrastructure  against  excessive  demand  or  overload  that  threatens  the  capacity  or  useful  life  of  a 
facility or piece of equipment. 
 
New or Substantially Expanded Facility.  Construction, or acquisition, of a new facility (including land) 
or new equipment, or major expansion thereof, that provides a service, or a level of service, not now 
available. 

Page 68 of 109



Revenue Sources and Projections 

The Galena CIP is utilized for planning and budgeting purposes and not as a rigid purchasing plan nor project 

schedule.  Therefore, the while the plan identifies likely revenue sources, it does not contain projections of 

available revenue for implementation of the plan.  One exception is the Street Improvement Sales Tax Fund 

where a half percent sales tax is dedicated for streets and related infrastructure.  Detailed revenue/expense 

analysis is performed to insure the proposed projects may be accomplished with available revenue from the 

fund.   Sales tax funded projects and all of the CIP’s prioritized projects should be evaluated for  inclusion  in 

the city’s operating budget each fiscal year.     

 

Abbreviations are used throughout the plan for both revenue sources and departments.   The abbreviations 

are shown in Figures 2 and 3 below. 

                                                Figure 2.                                      Figure 3. 
                           Revenue Sources Abbreviations                                       Department Abbreviations 
 

Revenue Source  Abbreviation Department Abbreviation
General Fund Cash  GF Public Works DPW
General Fund Financing  GFF Engineering  ENG
Motor Fuel Tax  MFT Turner Hall TH
Flood Control Cash  FC Administration ADM
Water Enterprise Cash  WTC Flood Control  FLD
Water Enterprise Financing  WTF Water  WAT
Sewer Enterprise Cash  SWC Sewer SEW
Sewer Enterprise Financing  SWF Parks PAR
Fire Department Cash  FD Police POL
Grants  GT Fire FD
    Swimming Pool SP

 
Recommended Plan  

After  identifying all  the potential  capital projects and purchases, describing  them  in detail and evaluating 

their  importance,  the  final plan was developed.   The plan  is presented as “Attachment C: Recommended 

Capital  Improvement Plan”.   The plan was recommended to the Mayor and City Council on December 27, 

2016 and approved on ___________________, 2016.  Again, the projects and purchases from the final plan 

should be incorporated into the annual operating budget as revenues permit.   

 

Page 69 of 109



Summary 

The  importance of  implementing and updating  the Capital  Improvement Plan cannot be over‐emphasized.  

Using the same process described herein, the Capital Improvement Plan will continue to be updated annually 

to span a full five‐year period.   New capital  improvement requests will be submitted by department heads 

for  evaluation  and  inclusion  in  the  updated  plan.    With  guidance  from  the  Fund  Balance  Policy,  the 

Comprehensive Plan, and constituents, elected officials will decide which projects and purchases  from  the 

recommended Capital Improvement Plan will be included in the annual budget.  

 

Page 70 of 109



CIP PROPOSAL DESCRIPTIONS AND JUSTIFICATIONS OVERVIEW 
 
In the following section, every CIP project that has been proposed by the various departments of the City is 
described in detail.  Criteria, including the recommendations of the Galena Comprehensive Plan are applied 
to assess whether a particular project is justified.  Each project is defined in the following format:    
 
Project Title:       Name of the project as used throughout the CIP. 
 
Department:      Name of the department that proposed the project. 
 
Date Submitted:  The date the project was proposed. (Nearly all the projects in this first year of 

the plan were also proposed this year.)   
 
Project Priority:  The priority of the project relative to other projects within the department. 
 
Project Description:    Description of the project. 
 
CIP Evaluation Criteria:   A list of the applicable criterion from the following page, Figure 1, “Evaluation 

Criteria for Capital Budget Requests”.  The criteria are used to evaluate the 
importance of the project relative to other projects.       
  

Comprehensive Plan:  A statement of whether or not the project can be directly justified by the 
Galena Comprehensive Plan and, if so, a page number and an excerpt from the 
plan. 

 
Multi‐year:  Identification of whether the project will take more than one year to complete. 
 
Coordination:  Identification of whether the project is dependent on one or more other CIP 

projects and, if so, a description of the related project(s). 
 
Cost Estimate:      The estimated cost of the project. 
 
Basis of Cost Estimate:   Identification of how the cost estimate was derived. 
 
Funding Source:  Identification of the proposed funding for the project.  Possible funding sources 

include, but are not limited to:  
 

 General Fund Reserves   Water Enterprise Cash 
 General Fund Financing   Water Enterprise Financing 
 Motor Fuel Tax   Sewer Enterprise Reserves 
 Flood Control Cash   Sewer Enterprise Financing 

 Capital Projects Fund Reserves   Grants 

 Capital Projects Fund Financing   Donations 
  

Page 71 of 109



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2017-2021)
Individual Project Descriptions

PUBLIC WORKS  

Project Title:
Department: Public Works/Engineering 
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: High
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Equity Provision, Coordination, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan: P. 108 "Budget for road improvements through the CIP process."
Multi‐Year: No
Coordination: Yes.  Projects are scheduled to coincide with underground utility work as much as possible.  
Cost Estimate: $1,266,510
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimates based on measured quantities and prices from recent projects
Funding Source: Capital Projects Fund (Sales Tax Fund)

 

Project Title: Downtown sidewalk and crosswalk replacement
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: December 2008
Project Priority: High
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Public Safety, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference 
Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $375,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Expanded/New Facility, Resource Conservation
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $12,500
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate and bids
Funding Source: Grant funded 

Project Title: Paint Highway 20 Bridge Railings
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: High
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $25,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

The construction of public restrooms at Gateway Park would complete the installation of all major infrastructure.  The foundation and 
plumbing for the restrooms was installed in 2014.  A $50,000 grant was awarded for the construction of the restroom building, but all 
but $12,500 was rescinded as a result of the state budget impasse.   It is assumed that a restroom will be constructed or installed 
within the $12,500 budget.

ATTACHMENT A. INDIVIDUAL PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS (FY 2018‐2022)

The steel stairway from the Highway 20 Bridge to the Depot Parking lot was painted in 2016.  The proposed project would be to paint 
all of the steel railings on the US 20 bridge to match.  

Includes all street improvement work planned for the five‐year plan period.  Projects to completed with the non‐home rule sales tax 
revenues are listed in the 5‐Year Street Improvement Plan and detailed in Appendix C.  

5‐Year Street Improvement Program (See Appendix A)

Replace deteriorated concrete sidewalks and crosswalks in the downtown.   The replacement plan is based on the study and 
recommendations by MSA Professional Services. 

Gateway Park restrooms 

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A1

Page 72 of 109



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2017-2021)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title:
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: High
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $25,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: General Fund
   

Project Title:
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: January 2012
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $25,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $18,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Quotes from contractors 
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Health Safety, New, Expanded Facility, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: Yes.  Coordinate with street project.
Cost Estimate: $120,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: Motor Fuel Tax

Project Title:
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $75,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate
Funding Source: Shuttle Fund

Replace walkway on Meeker St pedestrian bridge

Replace deteriorated elevated concrete walkway that spans about 20 feet on the west end of the bridge.

Gear Street sidewalk

Storm windows and insulation at Depot

Fabrication and insulation of storm windows and spray foam insulation of attic ceiling.  

Replace deteriorated storm sewer located beneath Dodge Street between Gear Street and South Street.

Dodge Street storm sewer replacement

Commerce Street parking lot resurfacing

Resurfacing of the City parking lot between Commerce Street and Water Street.  The project could include reshaping the lot to 
integrate Washington Street into the lot so all of the spaces would be "pay to park" spaces.  Landscaping should be considered. 

Install new sidewalk from West Street to the north to existing  sidewalk at US Highway 20.  This sidewalk will be coordinated with the 
Gear Street  construction project.  The sidewalk has been designed with the street project and is ready for bid.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A2

Page 73 of 109



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2017-2021)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title:
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $20,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate  
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes.  Design, funding, and construction.
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $73,500
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate  
Funding Source: Motor Fuel Tax

Project Title:
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2011
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: New, Expanded Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $25,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate  
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title: Sidewalk from US 20 to Cobblestone
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: New, Expanded Facility, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Could be completed in phases
Coordination: No   
Cost Estimate: $47,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

Add diagonal or perpendicular parking on the east side of the entry road to the pool.  Parking could start in front of the Public Works 
building and extend to the area across from the playground.  

Replace the bridge over Hughlett's Creek on Dewey Avenue.  The bridge has been inspected and found to be in poor condition.  The 
project will be coordinated by the County Engineer and paid for with a combination of federal, county and city funds.  

Additional parking at Recreation Park

Paint Grant Park pedestrian bridge

Construction of five feet wide sidewalk from the  intersection of U.S. Highway 20 and Oldenburg Lane to the beginning of Cobblestone 
Boulevard.  The proposed sidewalk will link the bike path along U.S. Highway 20 to the Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision.

Dewey Avenue bridge replacement

Paint the light posts and the protective metal work and railings on the sides of the bridge to prevent deterioration.   Paint handrails to 
the bottom of the levee at Green Street.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A3

Page 74 of 109



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2017-2021)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Annual Sidewalk/Steps Replacement Program
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 1999
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Public Safety, Equitable Provision of Facilities, New Facilities
Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: Yes 
Coordination: Yes.  Initiate program after study/inventory is complete.
Cost Estimate: $50,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Completed inventory of one ward.
Funding Source: General Fund 

Project Title: Wayfinding signage project
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated facility, Public Safety, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: Yes.  Coordinate with highway and street projects.
Cost Estimate: $106,500
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: High
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes 
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $600,700
Basis of Cost Estimate: Current cost of vehicles plus inflation factor 
Funding Source: General Fund, Water Fund, Sewer Fund, Flood Control

ENGINEERING

Project Title:
Department: Engineering
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: High
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Resource Conservation, Operating Efficiency, New Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $8,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate 
Funding Source: General Fund

Systematic replacement of deteriorated sidewalks and public stairways throughout the community.  The replacement schedule should 
be based on the results of the comprehensive inventory, condition assessment and prioritization.

P. 112 "Investigate the rehabilitation of sidewalks under the CIP process.  This could include a discussion of possible financing 
mechanisms such as cost sharing or use of the assessment process."

Systematic replacement of public works vehicles and equipment.

Public Works Rolling Stock Plan (See Appendix D)

Battery Storage for City Hall Solar 

Project to improve wayfinding from the highway down to the pedestrian level.  Project includes consulting services for an existing 
conditions assessment, systems strategy, design, cost estimates, and plans for bidding.   It is anticipated that the sign fabrication and 
installation would be phased over multiple years. 

Installation of a Tesla battery pack on the interior of City Hall.  The battery would store surplus power generated from the rooftop solar 
array.  The stored power would be used when the solar array is not producing power.  

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A4

Page 75 of 109



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2017-2021)
Individual Project Descriptions

FLOOD CONTROL

Project Title:
Department: Flood Control
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: High
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No 
Cost Estimate: $100,000  
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Flood Control
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: High
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Deteriorated Facility, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: No 
Cost Estimate: $29,850  
Basis of Cost Estimate: Contract cost
Funding Source: Flood Control Fund

 
WATER

Project Title: Update SCADA system and computer
Department: Water 
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: High
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Health Safety, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No 
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $10,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate
Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: Paint and upgrade water tower at Well #5 (Franklin Street)
Department: Water 
Date Submitted: November 2006
Project Priority: High
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $100,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate 
Funding Source: Water Fund

Flood control vault reconstruction (Franklin and Bench) 

Reconstruction of the flood control vault ceiling under the Bench Street and Franklin Street intersection.  Structural problems with the 
ceiling were discovered during the 2016 storm water system inspection.  Temporary repairs were made in 2016.

Flood Control Rolling Stock Plan

50% share of cost of trading‐in the Public Works end loader every other year.  

In 2006, the water tower on Franklin Street was professionally inspected inside and out.  Detailed recommendations were made for 
repairing, upgrading and painting the tower.  Completing the work in the short term will be less expensive than if the facility continues 
to degrade, but funding availability will dictate timing.  

No direct reference.

Update the operating software and hardware for the computer system used to monitor and control the water, wastewater and storm 
sewer systems. 

No direct reference.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A5

Page 76 of 109



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2017-2021)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: East Side Water System Project design engineering
Department: Water
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Equitable Provision of Services
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $40,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate based on estimated construction cost
Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: East Side Water System DSI‐Park Ave water main
Department: Water
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Equitable Provision of Services 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: Yes
Cost Estimate: $375,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: 2015 estimate from consulting engineer
Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: East Side Water System DS2‐Highway 20 water main
Department: Water
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: Low
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Equitable Provision of Services 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: Yes
Cost Estimate: $85,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: 2015 estimate from consulting engineer
Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: East Side Water System DS3‐south pressure reduction station
Department: Water
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: Low
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: New Facility, Health Safety, Equitable Provision of Services 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: Yes
Cost Estimate: $200,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: 2015 estimate from consulting engineer
Funding Source: Water Fund

Replace 2,225 feet of 6" and 4" water main with 10" water main in order to resolve a low pressure issue at the north end of Park 
Avenue on the east side of the river.  The project is more fully described on page 5‐1 of the 2015 Water System Study Report prepared 
by IIW Engineers and Surveyors.

Replace 350 feet of 4" water main with 6" water main under US Highway 20 between Third Street and Fourth Street. This improvement 
is designed to resolve a low pressure issue in the area of the improvement.  The project is more fully described on page 5‐1 of the 2015 
Water System Study Report prepared by IIW Engineers and Surveyors.

Install 900 feet of 6" water main and a 6" pressure reduction station between Bouthillier Street and US Highway 20 in the Fourth Street 
right‐of‐way.  The improvement is to address a fire flow deficiency in the area of the improvement.  The project is more fully described 
on page 5‐1 of the 2015 Water System Study Report prepared by IIW Engineers and Surveyors.

Consulting services for the engineering design of DS1 component of the East Side Water System Project.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A6

Page 77 of 109



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2017-2021)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: East Side Water System WS1‐new well and pump house
Department: Water
Date Submitted: October 2004
Project Priority: Low
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: New Facility, Health Safety, Equitable Provision of Services 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: Yes
Cost Estimate: $1,635,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: 2015 estimate from consulting engineer
Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: Water and Sewer Rolling Stock Plan (See Appendix G)
Department: Water and Sewer
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facilities, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: Yes.  Coordinate with Public Works Rolling Stock Plan
Cost Estimate: $80,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Current cost plus inflation factor
Funding Source: Water and Sewer Funds

SEWER

Project Title: Replace controller for ultraviolet disinfection 
Department: Sewer
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: High
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $16,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title:
Department: Sewer
Date Submitted: January 2011
Project Priority: High
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Public Health and Safety, Operating Efficiency, New/Expanded Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $95,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Construct a new well and pump house on the east side of the Galena River adjacent to the Horseshoe Mound reservoir to provide a 
reliable source of water and water pressure for the east side.   The project is more fully described on page 5‐2 of the 2015 Water 
System Study Report prepared by IIW Engineers and Surveyors.  More study of need and options is recommended before committing 
to this project.

Installation of a new sewer main near US 20 and Bartell Drive to divert the sewer flow from the west end to the Hughlett's sewer main.  
This diversion will remove considerable flow from the sewer main on Franklin Street in the area of the schools where sewer backups 
have repeatedly occurred during heavy rains.  Easement acquisition may be necessary to install the diversion sewer.  

Systematic replacement of water and sewer vehicles and rolling equipment.

West end diversion sewer

Replace the original controller from 2001 on the UV disinfection device.  

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A7

Page 78 of 109



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2017-2021)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Inflow and infiltration study
Department: Sewer
Date Submitted: January 2010
Project Priority: High
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes, implement recommendations in future year(s)
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $20,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title:
Department: Sewer
Date Submitted: January 2011
Project Priority: High
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation, Health Safety, New Facility 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $240,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Consulting engineer's estimate
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title: Hughlett Creek sewer main replacement
Department: Sewer Fund

October 2004
Project Priority: Low
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Expanded Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $110,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Similar projects
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title: Madison and Fifth Street sewer main extension 
Department: Sewer
Date Submitted: October 2004
Project Priority: Low
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: New Facility, Equitable Provision of Services, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $220,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Similar projects
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

P. 113  "Where feasible, connect all residences not currently served with sanitary sewer and water to the City's system to protect the 

Bouthillier Street lift station/Park Avenue sewer main 

Professional study to determine points of inflow and infiltration of water into the sewer system.   Reducing inflow and infiltration can 
reduce operational costs, including electrical costs.

Install sanitary sewer main in the area of Madison Street and Fifth Street to convert eight homes from septic to public sewer.  This is 
the largest cluster of septics within the city limits. 

Replace under sized and deteriorated sewer main in the Hughlett Creek valley below Dewey Avenue.

Installation of a gravity sewer on Park Avenue, Johnson Street and along the railroad tracks to Jackson Street.  The sewer would be a 
gravity‐flow option to the pumped sewer that is in place and functioning properly.   The project would convert approximately 12 
properties from the pump system to gravity. 

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A8

Page 79 of 109



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2017-2021)
Individual Project Descriptions

PUBLIC SAFETY

Project Title:
Department: Police 
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: High
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $144,430
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate based on current costs of new vehicles plus inflation factor
Funding Source: General Fund

FIRE DEPARTMENT

Project Title: Paint exterior of building and replace windows
Department: Fire
Date Submitted: January 2010
Project Priority: Low
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $50,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Fire Fund

Project Title: Concrete Fire Department driveways
Department: Fire
Date Submitted: January 2010
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description: Replace blacktop driveways in front of garage bays with concrete.
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No   
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $55,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate 
Funding Source: Fire Fund

Project Title: Replace bunker gear
Department: Fire
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No   
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $150,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Fire Fund

Systematic plan to replace squad cars in the Police Department.   Replacement plan should be based on operating cost per mile, 
disruption to operations resulting from repairs and safety of the vehicles.

No direct reference.

P. 115 "Identify grant funding and other outside sources that will aid in purchasing capital equipment and the construction of new 

Paint exterior of Fire Station and install storm windows.

Police Rolling Stock Plan

Replace outer protective clothing for all fire fighters.  

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A9

Page 80 of 109



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2017-2021)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title:
Department: Fire
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No   
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $50,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Fire Fund

Project Title: Training center classroom building
Department: Fire
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Operating Efficiency, New Facility, Health Safety 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No   
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $960,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Architect's Estimate
Funding Source: Fire Fund, not‐for‐profit Volunteer Fire Department 

Project Title: Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan
Department: Fire 
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency

Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $1,500,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Review of current costs plus inflation
Funding Source: Fire Fund, borrowing

PARKS AND RECREATION

Project Title: Grant Park sidewalk replacement
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: February 2008
Project Priority: High
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference 
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $10,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Annual amount
Funding Source: Park Fund 

P. 115 "Develop a long term capital equipment and staffing plan for the Police and Fire Departments, based on population, tourism and 
growth projections."

Replace self contained breathing apparatus (SCBA)

Replace SCBA gear

Systematic replacement of fire vehicles. (See Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan)

Continuation of program to replace all deteriorated sidewalks Grant Park.  This should be the final year of replacement.

Begin construction of new multi‐purpose classroom building with vehicle bay.    

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A10

Page 81 of 109



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2017-2021)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Construction of Galena River Trail: Phase 3 to Aiken
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: November 2006
Project Priority: High
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Expanded Facility, Resource Conservation

Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $1,800,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Awarded contract plus engineering, testing and inspection services.
Funding Source: IDOT Grant Funds 

Project Title: Canoe and kayak launch
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Expanded Facility, Resource Conservation
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: Yes.  Water main replacement has been completed in the area of the parking lot.
Cost Estimate: $110,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: DNR grant funds, community funds

Project Title: Replace Grant Park basketball court
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: November 2006
Project Priority: Low
Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility
Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: No
Coordination: Yes.  Coordinate with Grant Park Masterplan projects.
Cost Estimate: $32,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Cost of similar projects
Funding Source: Park Fund

Project Title:
Department: Pool
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: High, Medium, Low
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility, Expanded Facility
Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $254,140
Basis of Cost Estimate: Quotes and estimates
Funding Source: Pool Fund 

No direct reference

P. 119 "Develop a comprehensive maintenance program for the parks.  This program should be part of the regular Capital 
Improvement Plan."

P. 119 "Develop a comprehensive maintenance program for the parks.  This program should be part of the regular Capital 
Improvement Plan."

Numerous maintenance and improvement projects implemented over a multi‐year period.  The projects are more fully described in 
Appendix H, "Swimming Pool Maintenance and Improvement Plan."

Replace deteriorated concrete court and two basketball goals in Grant Park.

Swimming pool maintenance and improvements

Construction of the final phase of the Galena River Trail.  Includes trail building and fencing to separate the trail from the live railroad.  
All property has been acquired, design is complete, and contract has been awarded.  Two grants secured for design and construction.

Construction of a canoe, kayak launch and park south of the U.S. Highway 20 bridge and east of the Gazette parking lot.  The project is 
expected to be completely grant funded.  Project on hold pending release of grant funds by the State of Illinois. 

P. 121 "Develop a bike route plan that connects the City's bike routes to external routes, such as the Grand Illinois Trail, and 
surrounding parks and natural areas."

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A11

Page 82 of 109



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2017-2021)
Individual Project Descriptions

TURNER HALL

Project Title: Turner Hall maintenance and improvements
Department: Turner Hall
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: Medium
Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Resource Conservation, Operating Efficiency, Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Expanded Facility
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year:
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $545,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimates 
Funding Source: Turner Hall Fund, General Fund, grants

Yes, two year project
P. 121 "Continue to better utilize Turner Hall."

Numerous maintenance and improvement projects implemented over a multi‐year period.  The projects are more fully described in 
Appendix I, "Turner Hall Maintenance and Improvement Plan."   

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A12

Page 83 of 109



ATTACHMENT B. EVALUATION OF PROJECTS USING CRITERIA  (FY 2018‐2022) 

Health/Safety Systematic Deteriorated Equitable Operating New/Expanded Resource 
Dept. Project Description Risk Replacement Facility Provision Efficiency Coordination Facility Conservation

Public Works
DPW 5‐Year Street Improvement Program (See Appendix A) X X X X X
DPW Downtown sidewalk and crosswalk replacement X X X
DPW Gateway Park restrooms  X X
DPW Paint Highway 20 Bridge Railings X
DPW Replace walkway on Meeker St pedestrian bridge X
DPW Dodge Street storm sewer replacement X X  

DPW Storm windows and insulation at Depot X X
DPW Gear Street sidewalk X X X X
DPW Commerce Street parking lot resurfacing X X
DPW Paint Grant Park pedestrian bridge X
DPW Dewey Avenue bridge replacement X X X
DPW Additional parking at Recreation Park X
DPW Sidewalk from US 20 to Cobblestone X X
DPW Annual Sidewalk/Steps Replacement Program X X X X
DPW Wayfinding signage project X X X
DPW Public Works Rolling Stock Plan X

Engineering
ENG Battery Storage for City Hall Solar  X X X

Flood Control
FLD Flood control vault reconstruction (Franklin and Bench)  X
FLD Flood Control Rolling Stock Plan X X X

Water
WAT Update SCADA system and computer X X X X X
WAT Paint and upgrade water tower at Well #5 (Franklin Street) X X
WAT East Side Water System Project design engineering X X X
WAT East Side Water System DSI‐Park Ave water main X X X
WAT East Side Water System DS2‐Highway 20 water main X X X
WAT East Side Water System DS3‐south pressure reduction station X X X
WAT East Side Water System WS1‐new well and pump house X X
WAT Water Rolling Stock Plan X X X

Criterion

CIP Evaluation Criteria
Page B 1

Page 84 of 109



Health/Safety Systematic Deteriorated Equitable Operating New/Expanded Resource 
  Project Description Risk Replacement Facility Provision Efficiency Coordination Facility Conservation

Sewer
SEW Replace controller for ultraviolet disinfection  X X
SEW West end diversion sewer X X X
SEW Inflow and infiltration study X X
SEW Bouthillier Street lift station/Park Avenue sewer main  X X X X
SEW Hughlett Creek sewer main replacement X X
SEW Madison and Fifth Street sewer main extension  X X X
SEW Sewer Rolling Stock Plan X X X

 

Public Safety
POL Police Rolling Stock Plan X X X
 

Fire
FD Paint exterior of building and replace windows X
FD Concrete Fire Department driveways X X
FD Replace bunker gear X X X
FD Replace SCBA gear X X X
FD Training center classroom building X X X
FD Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan X X X
 

Culture and Recreation
PAR Grant Park sidewalk replacement X X X
PAR Construction of Galena River Trail: Phase 3 to Aiken X X
PAR Canoe and kayak launch X X
PAR Replace Grant Park basketball court X X X
SP Swimming pool maintenance and improvements X X X X

TH Turner Hall maintenance and improvements X X X X X

CIP Evaluation Criteria
Page B 2

Page 85 of 109



ATTACHMENT C. RECOMMENDED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2018‐2022)
Estimated Grant FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 Total CIP 

Dept. Project Description Cost Funding? High Medium Low Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

Public Works
DPW 5‐Year Street Improvement Program (See Appendix A) 1,266,510$              X 207,200$                 139,250$                 290,650$                 359,010$                   270,400$                   1,266,510$                 
DPW Downtown sidewalk and crosswalk replacement 375,000$                  X 197,600$                 75,000$                   75,000$                   75,000$                     50,000$                     472,600$                    
DPW Gateway Park restrooms  12,500$                    X X 12,500$                   12,500$                      
DPW Paint Highway 20 Bridge Railings 25,000$                    X 25,000$                     25,000$                      
DPW Replace walkway on Meeker St pedestrian bridge 25,000$                    X 25,000$                   25,000$                      
DPW Dodge Street storm sewer replacement 25,000$                    X 25,000$                   25,000$                      
DPW Storm windows and insulation at Depot 18,000$                    X 18,000$                   18,000$                      
DPW Gear Street sidewalk 120,000$                  X 120,000$                 120,000$                    
DPW Commerce Street parking lot resurfacing 75,000$                    X 75,000$                   75,000$                      
DPW Paint Grant Park pedestrian bridge 20,000$                    X 20,000$                   20,000$                      
DPW Dewey Avenue bridge replacement 73,500$                    X X 73,500$                   73,500$                      
DPW Additional parking at Recreation Park 25,000$                    X 25,000$                   25,000$                      
DPW Sidewalk from US 20 to Cobblestone 47,000$                    X 47,000$                   47,000$                      
DPW Annual Sidewalk/Steps Replacement Program 50,000$                    X 10,000$                   10,000$                   10,000$                   10,000$                     10,000$                     50,000$                      
DPW Wayfinding signage project 106,500$                  X 26,500$                   50,000$                   20,000$                   10,000$                     106,500$                    
DPW Public Works Rolling Stock Plan 600,700$                  X 123,300$                 104,300$                 103,800$                 165,300$                   104,000$                   600,700$                    

TOTAL 2,864,710$              760,100$                 602,050$                 546,450$                 619,310$                   434,400$                  2,962,310$                 

Engineering
ENG Battery Storage for City Hall Solar  8,000$                      X 8,000$                     8,000$                        

TOTAL 8,000$                      8,000$                     ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$                           ‐$                           8,000$                        

Flood Control
FLD Flood control vault reconstruction (Franklin and Bench)  100,000$                  X 100,000$                 100,000$                    
FLD Flood Control Rolling Stock Plan 29,850$                    X 3,500$                     9,000$                     3,800$                     9,550$                       4,000$                       29,850$                      

TOTAL 129,850$                  103,500$                 9,000$                     3,800$                     9,550$                       4,000$                       129,850$                    
 

Water
WAT Update SCADA system and computer 10,000$                    X 10,000$                   10,000$                      
WAT Paint and upgrade water tower at Well #5 (Franklin Street) 100,000$                  X 100,000$                   100,000$                    
WAT East Side Water System Project design engineering 40,000$                    X 40,000$                   40,000$                      
WAT East Side Water System DSI‐Park Ave water main 375,000$                  X 375,000$                 375,000$                    
WAT East Side Water System DS2‐Highway 20 water main 85,000$                    X 85,000$                   85,000$                      
WAT East Side Water System DS3‐south pressure reduction station 200,000$                  X 200,000$                   200,000$                    
WAT East Side Water System WS1‐new well and pump house 1,635,000$              X ‐$                             
WAT Water Rolling Stock Plan 40,000$                    X 2,000$                     2,000$                     22,000$                   12,000$                     2,000$                       40,000$                      

TOTAL 2,485,000$              152,000$                 377,000$                 107,000$                 212,000$                   2,000$                       850,000$                    

Sewer
SEW Replace controller for ultraviolet disinfection  16,000$                    X 16,000$                   16,000$                      
SEW West end diversion sewer 95,000$                    X 95,000$                   95,000$                      
SEW Inflow and infiltration study 20,000$                    X 10,000$                   10,000$                      
SEW Bouthillier Street lift station/Park Avenue sewer main  240,000$                  X ‐$                             
SEW Hughlett Creek sewer main replacement 110,000$                  X ‐$                             
SEW Madison and Fifth Street sewer main extension  220,000$                  X 220,000$                   220,000$                    
SEW Sewer Rolling Stock Plan 40,000$                    X 2,000$                     2,000$                     22,000$                   12,000$                     2,000$                       40,000$                      
  TOTAL 741,000$                  113,000$                 2,000$                     32,000$                   12,000$                     222,000$                  381,000$                    

Priority

Recommended CIP
Page C1 

Page 86 of 109



Estimated FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 Total CIP 
Dept. Project Description Cost High Medium Low Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

Public Safety
POL Police Rolling Stock Plan 144,430$                  X 34,000$                   35,020$                   ‐$                         37,150$                     38,260$                     144,430$                    
  TOTAL 144,430$                  34,000$                   35,020$                   ‐$                         37,150$                     38,260$                     144,430$                    

Fire
FD Paint exterior of building and replace windows 50,000$                    X 50,000$                   50,000$                      
FD Concrete Fire Department driveways 55,000$                    X 55,000$                   55,000$                      
FD Replace bunker gear 150,000$                  X 150,000$                   150,000$                    
FD Replace SCBA gear 50,000$                    X   ‐$                             
FD Training center classroom building 960,000$                  X ‐$                             
FD Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan 1,500,000$              X 1,500,000$               1,500,000$                 
  TOTAL 2,765,000$              105,000$                 1,500,000$             ‐$                         150,000$                   ‐$                           1,755,000$                 

Culture and Recreation
PAR Grant Park sidewalk replacement 10,000$                    X 10,000$                   10,000$                      
PAR Construction of Galena River Trail: Phase 3 to Aiken 1,800,000$              X X 1,800,000$             1,800,000$                 
PAR Canoe and kayak launch 110,000$                  X X 110,000$                 110,000$                    
PAR Replace Grant Park basketball court 32,000$                    X 32,000$                   32,000$                      
SP Swimming pool maintenance and improvements 254,140$                  X X X 25,500$                   65,500$                   81,640$                   11,000$                     96,000$                     279,640$                    

TOTAL 2,206,140$              1,835,500$             207,500$                 81,640$                   11,000$                     96,000$                     2,231,640$                 

TH Turner Hall maintenance and improvements 545,000$                  X X X X 32,500$                   10,000$                   ‐$                         2,500$                       500,000$                   545,000$                    
TOTAL 545,000$                  32,500$                   10,000$                   ‐$                         2,500$                       500,000$                  545,000$                    

TOTAL 11,759,280$            3,040,100$             2,733,570$             767,090$                 1,043,959$               1,292,660$               8,877,380$                 

Priority

Recommended CIP
Page C2 

Page 87 of 109



FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22
Street Location Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

FY 17/18 (Year 1)

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
   
West Street Franklin Street to High Street (end) 60,700$                    
Third Street  U.S. Route 20 to Lafayette  26,500$                    
Adams Street Park Avenue to Third Street 17,125$                    
Third Street  North and South from Adams to ends 20,550$                    
Jefferson Street Park Avenue to Third Street 17,125$                    
Madison Street Park Avenue to Alley  13,700$                    

Sales Tax Projects Total 155,700$                 

Alley Resurfacing
Alley   Between Jefferson and Madison Street 15,000$                    

Alley Total 15,000$                   

Sealcoat
School Section West, Donegan, Dodge, Muir, Bridge, Turney and Bluff Streets 36,500$                    

Sealcoat Total 36,500$                   

TOTAL FY 17/18 207,200$                 
FY 18/19 (Year 2)

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
Clinton Street West Street to Hickory Street  45,000$                   
Division Street Clinton Street to End, Including Clay Street 30,000$                   
McBreams Street  West Street to Division Street 25,000$                   
Alexander Street Driscoll Street to end 18,500$                   
Hill Street High Street east to Prospect Street  14,000$                   

Sales Tax Projects Total 132,500$                  

Alley Resurfacing
Alley    Between Prospect Street and High Street, south of Hill 6,750$                     
  Alley Total 6,750$                       
Sealcoat
NA  

Sealcoat Total ‐$                         

TOTAL FY 18/19 139,250$                  
FY 19/20 (Year 3)

Non Sales Tax Projects
Technical Drive Chetlain Lane north to Industrial Drive 77,000$                    

77,000$                      

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
Hickory Street US 20 north to Ridge Street 112,500$                  
High Street US 20 to South 62,500$                    
Meeker Street Bench to top of hill 24,000$                    

Sales Tax Projects Total 199,000$                    

Alley Resurfacing
NA

Alley Total ‐$                            
Sealcoat
Mississippi Street Bench Street to Dodge Street 6,650$                      
South Bench Street  South Street to South End 5,000$                      
South Dodge Street Gear Street to Mississippi 3,000$                      

Sealcoat Total 14,650$                      

TOTAL FY 19/20 290,650$                    
FY 20/21 (Year 4)

Non Sales Tax Projects
Industrial Drive US 20 to Technical Drive 61,980$                  
Electronics Recycling Lot Meeker Street 6,765$                    

68,745$                    

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
Jackson Street High Street to Harrison Street 15,500$                  
Harrison Street Jackson Street to  16,000$                  
Dodge Street US 20 to Mars Avenue 131,200$               
Elk Street High Street to north end 33,000$                  
Fourth Street US 20 to Lafayette 8,500$                    

Sales Tax Projects Total 204,200$                 
Alley Resurfacing  
Behind Galena Green South of Green Street 19,300$                  

Alley Total 19,300$                   
Sealcoat
Council Hill Road Hughlett Creek to Buckhill 13,140$                  
Boggess Street Fifth Street to US20 11,220$                  
School Section West, Donegan, Dodge, Muir, Bridge, Turney and Bluff Streets 42,405$                  

Sealcoat Total 66,765$                   

TOTAL FY 20/21 359,010$                 

FY 21/22 (Year 5)

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
Fulton Street Division to Elm Street 70,000$                                  
West Street  Ridge Street to Green  60,000$                                  
Green Street West Street to Dodge Street  23,000$                                  
High Street Elk to Spring Street 117,400$                                

270,400$                               
Alley Resurfacing
NA

Alley Total ‐$                                        
Sealcoat
NA

Sealcoat Total ‐$                                        

TOTAL FY 21/22 270,400$                               

1,266,510$       

APPENDIX A:  5‐YEAR STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (FY 2018‐2022)

TOTAL CIP COST

5-Year Street Improvement Program
APX. A

Page 88 of 109



CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

SEALCOAT SURFACING STREETS

APPENDIX A1

FY 2017-2018

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

West

Field

Jo D
aviess S

t

Dodge St

Bluff St

Tu
rn

ey
   

S
t

Muir St

R
id

ge
 S

t

Dandar St

Industria
l Ave

'A' St
'A' St

W Chetlain Ln

Franklin

St

StW
an

n 

Winnebago
       Dr

Elm St

Blackhawk

Sioux
  Ct

Fulton

St

Clinton

St

Alexander St

Campbell 

M
enom

inee 

Kelly Ln

St

Ja
m

es
 S
qu

ar
e

Spring St

St

W
es

t

S 
  D

od
ge

S

Gear

St

Mississippi St

Iowa St

W
at

er
 

S

Decatur

Bouthillier Boggess

Park

Adams  

4th

3r
d

4t
h

Lafayette 

St

St

St

St

5th

St

St

Ave

Be
nc

h

St
South

Hi
gh

St

St

Irvine

D
r

G
al

en
a

M
ai

n

St

C
om

m
er

ce

Water

St

St

Hill

Franklin

Green

St

M
eeker

St

N Dodge

St

Bridge St

Ap
ac

he
 C

t

N

Division
St

Barry

St

Hill  

Hill 

G
ear

West St

N

Clau
de

 S
t

3rd St

Jefferson St

Monroe  

Madison   

St

Do
dg

e

Wight  St

Washington

W
es

t
Mars

St

Ridge

Elk  St

Elk

N
Hick

or
y

St

Di
vis

io
n

St

Su
m

m
it

St
S

H
ic

ko
ry

S

St

Maple St

Elk

St

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Jackson St

Domino

Satu
rn 

Ln

S
t

St

St

St
Dr

St

St

St

St

St

D
r

W  Red  Gates  Rd

St

Br
oa

dw
ay

W

Powder House Hill Rd

W
  R

ed
  G

at
es

  R
d

Te
ch

ni
ca

l

Dr

Cob
ble

sto
ne

Oldenburg

C
ou

nt
ry

Vi
ew

 C
t

W
oo

dl
an

d
   

 C
t

Bar
tel

l

Blvd

Coneflower
        Cir

Sproule Ln

Klockow St

Caroldon
        Ct

C
ro

ss

Rd

N

Rd

Ferry
Landing

Rives
   St

St

Johnson

     St

Apollo
   Ct

Ln

Ju
pi

te
r D

r

N Blackjack

Rd

St

Ben
ch

S

W
illi

am
   

 S
t

S 
Pr

os
pe

ct
   

   
 S

t

St

Gear

St

Tra
il

W

Stag
ec

oa
ch

St

D
on

eg
an

St

N
R

d
S

ch
oo

l
Se

ct
io

n

St

N Jackson St

Brown
 St

Dew
ey

Av
e

Franklin

St

Dodge

N

N

H
ig

h
S

tM
eeker

Oak
  S

t

Bridge
   St

H
ill 

 S
t

Bu
ss

an
 A

ve
G

ra
nt

 C
t

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

Pawnee
    Ct

Circ
le

Fi
re

Council
R

ya
n 

C
t

 Rolling
Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct
Altenburg

     Ln

Spring

St

Ridge St

St

Young

St

S 
O

ak
   

St

Spare   St

West St

St

S

S

S H
igh

 S
t

S 
 H

ig
h 

 S
t

St

S

St

Pros
pe

ct N

St
Bench

St St

St

S

St

N

Main

N H
igh

St

St

N Hick
ory

     
 St

Hill St

Dris
co

ll S
t

Vine St

St

McBreams
Ln
Duer St

Shadow Bluff
      Dr

Ln

Blvd

Exchange St
Ave

GEAR ST RECONSTRUCTION

BLACKTOP SURFACING ALLEYS

Page 89 of 109



Xref H:\CAD Drawings\Snow Routes\All Routes Dec 11 2008.dwg

CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
APPENDIX A1

FY 2018-2019

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

West

Field

Jo D
aviess S

t

Dodge St

Bluff St

Tu
rn

ey
   

S
t

Muir St

R
id

ge
 S

t

Dandar St

Industria
l Ave

'A' St
'A' St

W Chetlain Ln

Franklin

St

StW
an

n 

Winnebago
       Dr

Elm St

Blackhawk

Sioux
  Ct

Fulton

St

Clinton

St

Alexander St

Campbell 

M
enom

inee 

Kelly Ln

St

Ja
m

es
 S
qu

ar
e

Spring St

St

W
es

t

S 
  D

od
ge

S

Gear

St

Mississippi St

Iowa St

W
at

er
 

S

Decatur

Bouthillier Boggess

Park

Adams  

4th

3r
d

4t
h

Lafayette 

St

St

St

St

5th

St

St

Ave

Be
nc

h

St
South

Hi
gh

St

St

Irvine

D
r

G
al

en
a

M
ai

n

St

C
om

m
er

ce

Water

St

St

Hill

Franklin

Green

St

M
eeker

St

N Dodge

St

Bridge St

Ap
ac

he
 C

t

N

Division
St

Barry

St

Hill  

Hill 

G
ear

West St

N

Clau
de

 S
t

3rd St

Jefferson St

Monroe  

Madison   

St

Do
dg

e

Wight  St

Washington

W
es

t
Mars

St

Ridge

Elk  St

Elk

N
Hick

or
y

St

Di
vis

io
n

St

Su
m

m
it

St
S

H
ic

ko
ry

S

St

Maple St

Elk

St

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Jackson St

Domino

Satu
rn 

Ln

S
t

St

St

St
Dr

St

St

St

St

St

D
r

W  Red  Gates  Rd

St

Br
oa

dw
ay

W

Powder House Hill Rd

W
  R

ed
  G

at
es

  R
d

Te
ch

ni
ca

l

Dr

Cob
ble

sto
ne

Oldenburg

C
ou

nt
ry

Vi
ew

 C
t

W
oo

dl
an

d
   

 C
t

Bar
tel

l

Blvd

Coneflower
        Cir

Sproule Ln

Klockow St

Caroldon
        Ct

C
ro

ss

Rd

N

Rd

Ferry
Landing

Rives
   St

St

Johnson

     St

Apollo
   Ct

Ln

Ju
pi

te
r D

r

N Blackjack

Rd

St

Ben
ch

S

W
illi

am
   

 S
t

S 
Pr

os
pe

ct
   

   
 S

t

St

Gear

St

Tra
il

W

Stag
ec

oa
ch

St

D
on

eg
an

St

N
R

d
S

ch
oo

l
Se

ct
io

n

St

N Jackson St

Brown
 St

Dew
ey

Av
e

Franklin

St

Dodge

N

N

H
ig

h
S

tM
eeker

Oak
  S

t

Bridge
   St

H
ill 

 S
t

Bu
ss

an
 A

ve
G

ra
nt

 C
t

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

Pawnee
    Ct

Circ
le

Fi
re

Council
R

ya
n 

C
t

 Rolling
Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct
Altenburg

     Ln

Spring

St

Ridge St

St

Young

St

S 
O

ak
   

St

Spare   St

West St

St

S

S

S H
igh

 S
t

S 
 H

ig
h 

 S
t

St

S

St

Pros
pe

ct N

St
Bench

St St

St

S

St

N

Main

N H
igh

St

St

N Hick
ory

     
 St

Hill St

Dris
co

ll S
t

Vine St

St

McBreams
Ln
Duer St

Shadow Bluff
      Dr

Ln

Blvd

Exchange St
Ave

SPRING ST. RECONSTRUCTION

BLACKTOP SURFACING ALLEYS

Page 90 of 109



Xref H:\CAD Drawings\Snow Routes\All Routes Dec 11 2008.dwg

CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

SEALCOAT SURFACING STREETS

APPENDIX A1

FY 2019-2020

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

West

Field

Jo D
aviess S

t

Dodge St

Bluff St

Tu
rn

ey
   

S
t

Muir St

R
id

ge
 S

t

Dandar St

Industria
l Ave

'A' St
'A' St

W Chetlain Ln

Franklin

St

StW
an

n 

Winnebago
       Dr

Elm St

Blackhawk

Sioux
  Ct

Fulton

St

Clinton

St

Alexander St

Campbell 

M
enom

inee 

Kelly Ln

St

Ja
m

es
 S
qu

ar
e

Spring St

St

W
es

t

S 
  D

od
ge

S

Gear

St

Mississippi St

Iowa St

W
at

er
 

S

Decatur

Bouthillier Boggess

Park

Adams  

4th

3r
d

4t
h

Lafayette 

St

St

St

St

5th

St

St

Ave

Be
nc

h

St
South

Hi
gh

St

St

Irvine

D
r

G
al

en
a

M
ai

n

St

C
om

m
er

ce

Water

St

St

Hill

Franklin

Green

St

M
eeker

St

N Dodge

St

Bridge St

Ap
ac

he
 C

t

N

Division
St

Barry

St

Hill  

Hill 

G
ear

West St

N

Clau
de

 S
t

3rd St

Jefferson St

Monroe  

Madison   

St

Do
dg

e

Wight  St

Washington

W
es

t
Mars

St

Ridge

Elk  St

Elk

N
Hick

or
y

St

Di
vis

io
n

St

Su
m

m
it

St
S

H
ic

ko
ry

S

St

Maple St

Elk

St

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Jackson St

Domino

Satu
rn 

Ln

S
t

St

St

St
Dr

St

St

St

St

St

D
r

W  Red  Gates  Rd

St

Br
oa

dw
ay

W

Powder House Hill Rd

W
  R

ed
  G

at
es

  R
d

Te
ch

ni
ca

l

Dr

Cob
ble

sto
ne

Oldenburg

C
ou

nt
ry

Vi
ew

 C
t

W
oo

dl
an

d
   

 C
t

Bar
tel

l

Blvd

Coneflower
        Cir

Sproule Ln

Klockow St

Caroldon
        Ct

C
ro

ss

Rd

N

Rd

Ferry
Landing

Rives
   St

St

Johnson

     St

Apollo
   Ct

Ln

Ju
pi

te
r D

r

N Blackjack

Rd

St

Ben
ch

S

W
illi

am
   

 S
t

S 
Pr

os
pe

ct
   

   
 S

t

St

Gear

St

Tra
il

W

Stag
ec

oa
ch

St

D
on

eg
an

St

N
R

d
S

ch
oo

l
Se

ct
io

n

St

N Jackson St

Brown
 St

Dew
ey

Av
e

Franklin

St

Dodge

N

N

H
ig

h
S

tM
eeker

Oak
  S

t

Bridge
   St

H
ill 

 S
t

Bu
ss

an
 A

ve
G

ra
nt

 C
t

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

Pawnee
    Ct

Circ
le

Fi
re

Council
R

ya
n 

C
t

 Rolling
Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct
Altenburg

     Ln

Spring

St

Ridge St

St

Young

St

S 
O

ak
   

St

Spare   St

West St

St

S

S

S H
igh

 S
t

S 
 H

ig
h 

 S
t

St

S

St

Pros
pe

ct N

St
Bench

St St

St

S

St

N

Main

N H
igh

St

St

N Hick
ory

     
 St

Hill St

Dris
co

ll S
t

Vine St

St

McBreams
Ln
Duer St

Shadow Bluff
      Dr

Ln

Blvd

Exchange St
Ave

NON-SALES TAX BLACKTOP SURF.

Page 91 of 109



CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

BLACKTOP SURFACING ALLEYS

APPENDIX A1

FY 2020-2021

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

West

Field

Jo D
aviess S

t

Dodge St

Bluff St

Tu
rn

ey
   

S
t

Muir St

R
id

ge
 S

t

Dandar St

Industria
l Ave

'A' St
'A' St

W Chetlain Ln

Franklin

St

StW
an

n 

Winnebago
       Dr

Elm St

Blackhawk

Sioux
  Ct

Fulton

St

Clinton

St

Alexander St

Campbell 

M
enom

inee 

Kelly Ln

St

Ja
m

es
 S
qu

ar
e

Spring St

St

W
es

t

S 
  D

od
ge

S

Gear

St

Mississippi St

Iowa St

W
at

er
 

S

Decatur

Bouthillier Boggess

Park

Adams  

4th

3r
d

4t
h

Lafayette 

St

St

St

St

5th

St

St

Ave

Be
nc

h

St
South

Hi
gh

St

St

Irvine

D
r

G
al

en
a

M
ai

n

St

C
om

m
er

ce

Water

St

St

Hill

Franklin

Green

St

M
eeker

St

N Dodge

St

Bridge St

Ap
ac

he
 C

t

N

Division
St

Barry

St

Hill  

Hill 

G
ear

West St

N

Clau
de

 S
t

3rd St

Jefferson St

Monroe  

Madison   

St

Do
dg

e

Wight  St

Washington

W
es

t
Mars

St

Ridge

Elk  St

Elk

N
Hick

or
y

St

Di
vis

io
n

St

Su
m

m
it

St
S

H
ic

ko
ry

S

St

Maple St

Elk

St

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Jackson St

Domino

Satu
rn 

Ln

S
t

St

St

St
Dr

St

St

St

St

St

D
r

W  Red  Gates  Rd

St

Br
oa

dw
ay

W

Powder House Hill Rd

W
  R

ed
  G

at
es

  R
d

Te
ch

ni
ca

l

Dr

Cob
ble

sto
ne

Oldenburg

C
ou

nt
ry

Vi
ew

 C
t

W
oo

dl
an

d
   

 C
t

Bar
tel

l

Blvd

Coneflower
        Cir

Sproule Ln

Klockow St

Caroldon
        Ct

C
ro

ss

Rd

N

Rd

Ferry
Landing

Rives
   St

St

Johnson

     St

Apollo
   Ct

Ln

Ju
pi

te
r D

r

N Blackjack

Rd

St

Ben
ch

S

W
illi

am
   

 S
t

S 
Pr

os
pe

ct
   

   
 S

t

St

Gear

St

Tra
il

W

Stag
ec

oa
ch

St

D
on

eg
an

St

N
R

d
S

ch
oo

l
Se

ct
io

n

St

N Jackson St

Brown
 St

Dew
ey

Av
e

Franklin

St

Dodge

N

N

H
ig

h
S

tM
eeker

Oak
  S

t

Bridge
   St

H
ill 

 S
t

Bu
ss

an
 A

ve
G

ra
nt

 C
t

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

Pawnee
    Ct

Circ
le

Fi
re

Council
R

ya
n 

C
t

 Rolling
Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct
Altenburg

     Ln

Spring

St

Ridge St

St

Young

St

S 
O

ak
   

St

Spare   St

West St

St

S

S

S H
igh

 S
t

S 
 H

ig
h 

 S
t

St

S

St

Pros
pe

ct N

St
Bench

St St

St

S

St

N

Main

N H
igh

St

St

N Hick
ory

     
 St

Hill St

Dris
co

ll S
t

Vine St

St

McBreams
Ln
Duer St

Shadow Bluff
      Dr

Ln

Blvd

Exchange St
Ave

NON-SALES TAX BLACKTOP SURF.

SEALCOAT SURFACING STREETS

Page 92 of 109



West

Field

Jo D
aviess S

t

Dodge St

Bluff St

Tu
rn

ey
   

S
t

Muir St

R
id

ge
 S

t

Dandar St

Industria
l Ave

'A' St
'A' St

W Chetlain Ln

Franklin

St

StW
an

n 

Winnebago
       Dr

Elm St

Blackhawk

Sioux
  Ct

Fulton

St

Clinton

St

Alexander St

Campbell 

M
enom

inee 

Kelly Ln

St

Ja
m

es
 S
qu

ar
e

Spring St

St

W
es

t

S 
  D

od
ge

S

Gear

St

Mississippi St

Iowa St

W
at

er
 

S

Decatur

Bouthillier Boggess

Park

Adams  

4th

3r
d

4t
h

Lafayette 

St

St

St

St

5th

St

St

Ave

Be
nc

h

St
South

Hi
gh

St

St

Irvine

D
r

G
al

en
a

M
ai

n

St

C
om

m
er

ce

Water

St

St

Hill

Franklin

Green

St

M
eeker

St

N Dodge

St

Bridge St

Ap
ac

he
 C

t

N

Division
St

Barry

St

Hill  

Hill 

G
ear

West St

N

Clau
de

 S
t

3rd St

Jefferson St

Monroe  

Madison   

St

Do
dg

e

Wight  St

Washington

W
es

t
Mars

St

Ridge

Elk  St

Elk

N
Hick

or
y

St

Di
vis

io
n

St

Su
m

m
it

St
S

H
ic

ko
ry

S

St

Maple St

Elk

St

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Jackson St

Domino

Satu
rn 

Ln

S
t

St

St

St
Dr

St

St

St

St

St

D
r

W  Red  Gates  Rd

St

Br
oa

dw
ay

W

Powder House Hill Rd

W
  R

ed
  G

at
es

  R
d

Te
ch

ni
ca

l

Dr

Cob
ble

sto
ne

Oldenburg

C
ou

nt
ry

Vi
ew

 C
t

W
oo

dl
an

d
   

 C
t

Bar
tel

l

Blvd

Coneflower
        Cir

Sproule Ln

Klockow St

Caroldon
        Ct

C
ro

ss

Rd

N

Rd

Ferry
Landing

Rives
   St

St

Johnson

     St

Apollo
   Ct

Ln

Ju
pi

te
r D

r

N Blackjack

Rd

St

Ben
ch

S

W
illi

am
   

 S
t

S 
Pr

os
pe

ct
   

   
 S

t

St

Gear

St

Tra
il

W

Stag
ec

oa
ch

St

D
on

eg
an

St

N
R

d
S

ch
oo

l
Se

ct
io

n

St

N Jackson St

Brown
 St

Dew
ey

Av
e

Franklin

St

Dodge

N

N

H
ig

h
S

tM
eeker

Oak
  S

t

Bridge
   St

H
ill 

 S
t

Bu
ss

an
 A

ve
G

ra
nt

 C
t

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

Pawnee
    Ct

Circ
le

Fi
re

Council
R

ya
n 

C
t

 Rolling
Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct
Altenburg

     Ln

Spring

St

Ridge St

St

Young

St

S 
O

ak
   

St

Spare   St

West St

St

S

S

S H
igh

 S
t

S 
 H

ig
h 

 S
t

St

S

St

Pros
pe

ct N

St
Bench

St St

St

S

St

N

Main

N H
igh

St

St

N Hick
ory

     
 St

Hill St

Dris
co

ll S
t

Vine St

St

McBreams
Ln
Duer St

Shadow Bluff
      Dr

Ln

Blvd

Exchange St
Ave

Xref H:\CAD Drawings\Snow Routes\All Routes Dec 11 2008.dwg

CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
APPENDIX A1

FY 2021-2022

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

Page 93 of 109



Estimated
Map Surface (PASER) Resurfacing Square Surfacing Construction 

Location Alley Location Description Material Condition Material Feet Cost Priority Year

A Between Prospect and High (from Green to Washington) Asphalt 2 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 11,000    32,700$           1 Complete

B Between Prospect and High (south of Green Street) Asphalt 6 Patch Edges & 1‐2" Asphalt Overlay 13,000    19,300$           10 2020‐21

C Between Prospect and High (south of Hill Street) Asphalt 5 Patch & 1‐2" Asph. O.L. or Patch & Crack Seal? 3,900      6,750$             9 2018‐19

D Between Elk and Hill (from Prospect to High) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 8,700      26,000$           3 Complete

E North of Franklin (between Driscoll and Hickory) Asphalt 2 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 5,400      7,300$             6 Complete

F Between Elk and Hill (from Dodge to High) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 10,300    30,650$           2 Complete

G Between Franklin and Bridge (from Division to Hickory) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 7,300      7,300$             5 Complete

H Between Main and Bench (north of Hill Street) Gravel 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 4,300      12,800$           4 Complete

I Between Park and Third (South of US 20) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 3,400      NA Private

J Between Park and Third (from Lafayette to US 20) Asphalt 4 Patch Edges & 1‐2" Asphalt Overlay 6,600      11,400$           8 Complete

K Between Park and Third  (from Jefferson to Madison) Asphalt 3 Patch Edges & 1‐2" Asphalt Overlay 10,200    17,700$           7 2019‐20

TOTAL 171,900$    

NOTE:  Cost estimates are based on at least 30‐50% of work being completed at same time.  Otherwise, mobilization costs for single work items will increase cost.

APPENDIX A2:  ALLEY IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2013‐2021)
Based on Condition Assessment Conducted February 7, 2012

 5-Year Alley Improvement Plan
APX. A2

Page 94 of 109



FY 2008‐09 FY 2009‐10 FY 2009‐10 FY 2010‐11 FY 2010‐11 FY2011‐12 FY2012‐13 FY 2013‐14 FY 2014‐15 FY 2015‐16 FY 2016‐17
Improvement Bouthillier Street Dewey Avenue Jackson Street Pre‐ERP & ERP Main Street, 

Meeker Street
Main Street,  Gear 
Street,  Flood Pumps

Downtown 
Flood Pumps

Downtown 
Flood Pumps

Park Avenue Kelly Lane, Alleys, 
Bench Street Repairs

Field, Hill, Elk, N. 
West, Division, South 

Bench Street

Total

X  X X X

X  X X

X  X X

X  X
X 

X

X  X X
Engineering   X   X  X X X

Construction Sub‐Total    

Contingency (5%)    

$          746,476  $            84,956   $                    127,090  $                    317,000  $            3,900,977 

 
$            34,270  $                     ‐    $                524,048 

TOTAL PROJECT COST  $                630,758   $           495,064   $            369,541   $          554,305   $          885,615   $                    152,800   $            27,150   $          780,746   $            84,956   $                    127,090   $                    317,000   $            4,425,025 

Notes:

Completed Projects
APPENDIX B:  NON‐HOME RULE SALES TAX (1/2%) STREET & INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM

Completed Projects

$                               ‐   

4 (Fair)

 $                     ‐   

 X   X 

 X 

Curb & Gutter  X   X  X   X 

Sidewalk

Storm Sewer

Water 

Sanitary Sewer

 X 

 X 

3‐4 (Poor‐Fair) 4 (Fair)

 X   X 

 X 

 X 

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 
Poor)

Street (Rating) Condition 3‐4 (Poor‐Fair) 2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 
Poor)

Street Construction  X 

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 
Poor)

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 
Poor)

 

Interest Expense    $                130,258   $          133,674  $              96,996 

CONSTRUCTION TOTAL  $          751,941  $                500,500   $          502,521 

 X 

 $           398,068   $            292,476 

 $               77,065 

 $            27,150 

 $            51,784 

 $                    152,800 

4 (Fair)

 X 

 X 

 X 

X

 X 

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ Poor)2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ Poor)

1. Street Condition: Based on PASER rating system: 1 - Failed, 2 - Very Poor, 3 - Poor, 4 - Fair, 5 - Fair, 6 - Good, 7 - Good, 8 - Very Good, 9 - Excellent and 10 - Excellent
2.  Street Surface: all streets to be blacktop unless otherwise noted
3.  The IDOT has indicated that the Gear Street resurfacing will be included in the US 20 project.  The surfacing cost is excluded from the Gear Street project cost.
4.  Interest expense assumes borrowing at 4.85% interest for 10 years.
5.  ERP = Emergency Street Repair Program grant from the Illinois Department of Transportation 

Non-Home Rule Sales Tax Streets Program: Completed Projects
APX. B

Page 95 of 109



Year‐End Fund Balance 2008‐09* 2009‐10* 2010‐11* 2011‐12* 2012‐13* 1013‐14* 2014‐15* 2015‐16* Continued
Below

Fund Balance  $190,949 $268,873 $454,405 $481,677 $843,873 $229,568 $254,534 $268,844

Year‐End Fund Balance 2016‐17 2017‐18 2018‐19 2019‐20 2020‐21 2021‐22 2022‐23 2023‐24 2024‐25

Fund Balance  $114,455 $28,169 $42,330 $59,475 $86,284 $174,324 $533,544 $923,544 $1,313,544

Notes:
* Actual audited fund balance.  All other years are projected based on proposed CIP expenditures.

APPENDIX C: STREET IMPROVEMENT SALES TAX FUND  
PROJECTED YEAR‐END FUND BALANCE 

Fiscal Year

Non-Home Rule Sales Tax: Projected Fund Balance
APX. C

Page 96 of 109



APPENDIX D. PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK AND EQUIPMENT PLAN (FY 2018‐2022)

Total FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 Total CIP 
Year Rolling Stock Replace With Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost 

1961 125 Mobile Air Compressor ‐$            ‐$           
1991 Brush Chipper ‐$            ‐$           
2005 John Deere 410 Backhoe ‐$            ‐$           
2006 3/4 Ton  Dodge Ram (Parks) Same (used) High 25,000$     25,000$      25,000$    
2007 Sterling 10 Ton Dump w/ Plow Same Medium 80,000$     80,000$     80,000$    
2007 3/4 Ton Chevy Pickup w/ Plow ‐$            ‐$           
2008 Tymco Street Sweeper Same Low 130,000$   130,000$   130,000$  
2010 Articulating Boom Mower ‐$            ‐$           
2010 Case 621 End loader w/ Backhoe (50% Flood Control) Same High 22,500$     11,000$     11,500$     22,500$    
2011 International 10 Ton Dump w/ Plow/Spreader ‐$            ‐$           
2011 Chevy 1 Ton Truck w/ Plow/Spreader Same Medium 70,000$     70,000$     70,000$    
2012 Ford 1 Ton Truck w/ Plow/Spreader/Dump Same High 75,000$     75,000$      75,000$    
2012 John Deere 320 Skid Loader (leased) (Flood Control) Same High 18,600$     3,500$        3,500$       3,800$       3,800$       4,000$       18,600$    
2013 748 John Deere Mower Same High 22,000$     11,000$      11,000$     22,000$    
2013 748 John Deere Mower Same Medium 22,000$     11,000$     11,000$     22,000$    
2014 Chevy 1 Ton with Plow/Spreader/Dump Same Low 80,000$     80,000$     80,000$    
2014 Case Mini Excavator ‐$            ‐$           
2015 Ford 1 Ton Truck w/ Plow/Spreader/Dump   ‐$            ‐$           
2015 285 John Deere Z‐Turn Mower Same Medium 11,000$     11,000$     11,000$    
2016 John Deere 6145 Tractor Same High 44,600$     8,800$        8,800$       9,000$       9,000$       9,000$       44,600$    
2016 Brush grapple bucket ‐$           
2016 Bat wing mower attachment for tractor ‐$           

TOTAL 600,700$    123,300$    104,300$    103,800$    165,300$    104,000$    600,700$   

Priority

High

Medium

Low

* $8,800 per year lease.  

A project that would be desirable but would not address any health, safety, or other critical needs.  

A project that should be completed when sufficient funds are available from established funding mechanisms.

A project that is so imperative that every effort should be made, including the development of a new funding source, to complete the project as soon as possible

Current Stock Replacement Stock

Description

Public Works Rolling Stock Plan
APX. D

Page 97 of 109



APPENDIX E. FIRE DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK PLAN (FY 2018‐2022)

Total FY17/18 FY18/19 FY19/20 FY20/21 FY21/22 Total CIP 
Rolling Stock Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost*

Replace Ladder Truck  Medium 1,500,000$             1,500,000$             1,500,000$            

TOTAL 1,500,000$             ‐$                         1,500,000$             ‐$                         ‐$                         ‐$              1,500,000$            

Note:
* The cost of some vehicle purchases are shared with the Galena Rural Fire District.

Priority

High

Medium

Low

A project that is so imperative that every effort should be made, including the development of a new funding source, to complete the project as 
soon as possible. 

A project that should be completed when sufficient funds are available from established funding mechanisms. 

A project that would be desirable but would not address any health, safety, or other critical needs.   

Description

*  The proposed ladder truck purchase does not include the revenue from the sale of the current ladder truck.  The truck purchase could be delayed based on the performance of the current 
truck and/or budget.

Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan
APX. E

Page 98 of 109



APPENDIX F.  POLICE DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK PLAN (FY 2018‐2022)

Total FY17/18 FY18/19 FY19/20 FY20/21 FY21/22 Total CIP 
Rolling Stock Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost 

Replace oldest squad with new model High 34,000$             34,000$            34,000$                           
Replace oldest squad with new model High 35,020$             35,020$           35,020$                           
Replace oldest squad with new model High ‐$                   ‐$                ‐$                                 
Replace oldest squad with new model High 37,150$             37,150$            37,150$                           
Replace oldest squad with new model High 38,260$             38,260$           38,260$                           

TOTAL 144,430$           34,000$           35,020$           ‐$                37,150$            38,260$           144,430$                        

Notes:
1.   An inflation factor of 3% per year has been applied.
2.  All police vehicle costs are General Fund obligations.
3.   Starting in FY 09, an estimated $4,000 per year from court fines would be dedicated to vehicle purchases. 

Priority

High

Medium

Low A project that would be desirable but would not address any health, safety, or other critical needs.   

Description

A project that is so imperative that every effort should be made, including the development of a new funding source, to complete the 
project as soon as possible. 

A project that should be completed when sufficient funds are available from established funding mechanisms. 

Police Department Rolling Stock Plan
APX. F

Page 99 of 109



APPENDIX G.  WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK PLAN (FY 2018‐2022)

Total FY17/18 FY18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 Total CIP 
Year Rolling Stock Replace With Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost*

1984 GMC spreader truck Same ‐$                   
1996 New Holland LX665 skid steer Same Medium 20,000$     4,000$     4,000$         4,000$         4,000$         4,000$         20,000$             
2001 Sniper 747‐4000R trailer jet Same ‐$                   
2007 Chevy 3/4 ton pickup (red) Same Medium 20,000$      20,000$             
2012 Chevy 3/4 ton w/ utility box/plow 3/4 Ton/plow/box Medium 40,000$     40,000$      40,000$             
2015 Ford 3/4 ton with utility box Same ‐$                   

‐$                   
TOTAL 60,000$     4,000$     4,000$         44,000$      24,000$      4,000$         80,000$             

Water Cost (1/2 of TOTAL) 30,000$     2,000$     2,000$         22,000$      12,000$      2,000$         40,000$             
Sewer Cost (1/2 of TOTAL)  30,000$     2,000$     2,000$         22,000$      12,000$      2,000$         40,000$             

Current Stock Replacement Stock

Water and Sewer Rolling Stock Plan
APX. G

Page 100 of 109



Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start

1 FY 16/17 High New boiler to heat pool $15,000 Pre‐Season 2017
3 FY 16/17 High Handicap accessible chair lift $5,500 Pre‐Season 2017
4 FY 16/17 Medium Security cameras / Rec Park $3,500 Pre‐Season 2017
5 FY 15/16 Medium Computerized admissions and concessions $1,500 Pre‐Season 2017

Total FY 16/17 (CURRENT YEAR) $25,500

Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start

1 FY 17/18 High Kiddy pool resurfacing $30,000 Fall 2018
2 FY 17/18 High Kiddy pool features: new slide & water arch $20,000 Fall 2018
2 FY 17/18 Medium Oversized umbrellas for Kiddy Pool Area $8,000 Fall 2018
3 FY 17/18 Medium Storage shed for chlorine and chemicals $5,000 Fall 2018
4 FY 17/18 Medium Private family changing room/handicap accessible $1,500 Pre‐Season 2018
5 FY 17/18 Low New pool baskets / storage shelves / self locking storage for valuables $1,000 Pre‐Season 2018

Total FY 17/18 $65,500

Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start
1 FY 18/19 High Resurface Zero Depth area $80,640 Pre‐Season 2018
2 FY 18/19 Low Protection and slide fast surface annually $1,000 Pre‐Season 2018

Total FY 18/19 $81,640

Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start
1 FY 19/20 Low Protection and slide fast surface annually $1,000 Pre‐Season 2019
2 FY 19/20 High New water features or other pool enhancement $10,000 Fall 2020

Total FY 19/20 $11,000

Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start
1 FY 20/21 Low Protection and slide fast surface annually $1,000 Pre‐Season 2020
2 FY 20/21 High  Resurface Lap Pool  $85,000 Fall 2021
3 FY 20/21 High New water features or other pool enhancement $10,000 Fall 2021

Total FY 20/21 $96,000

Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start
1 FY 21/22 No projects identified

Total FY 21/22 $0

TOTAL 5‐YEAR PLAN $254,140

FUTURE PROJECTS Project Estimated Cost
  New large waterslide $120,000

APPENDIX H:  SWIMMING POOL MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2018‐2022)

Swimming Pool Maintenance and Improvement Plan
APX. H

Page 101 of 109



Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost

1 FY 16/17 High Sprinkler Head Repair $15,000
2 FY 16/17 Medium New Boiler $20,000
3 FY 16/17 Medium Fly Loft (interior insulation phase) $22,500

FY 2016‐17 (CURRENT YEAR) TOTAL $57,500

Project # Year Project Estimated Cost

1 FY 17/18 Medium Floor Refinishing (full sanding) $10,000
2 FY 17/18 Medium Fly Loft (exterior tuck pointing) $22,500

FY 2017‐18 TOTAL $32,500

Project # Year Project Estimated Cost

1 FY 18/19 Medium Energy efficiency projects / upgrades $10,000
FY 2018‐19 TOTAL $10,000

Project # Year Project Estimated Cost

1 FY 19/20 Medium No projects identified $0
FY 2018‐19 TOTAL $0

Project # Year Project Estimated Cost
1 FY 20/21 Medium Floor refinishing (wax coat only) $2,500

FY 2020‐21 TOTAL $2,500

Project # Year Project Estimated Cost
1 FY 21/22 Medium Building addition and remodel with kitchen, bathrooms and storage $500,000

FY 2021‐22 TOTAL $500,000

TOTAL 5‐YEAR PLAN $545,000

APPENDIX I:  TURNER HALL MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2018‐22)

Turner Hall Maintenance and Improvement Plan
APX. I

Page 102 of 109



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 12/13/2016 - 12/31/2016 Dec 22, 2016  10:08AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

5 ALARM FIRE & SAFETY EQU (173)
163014-1 1 Invoice HURST TOOL MAINTENA 12/09/2016 775.00 22.22.655.00

Total 5 ALARM FIRE & SAFETY EQU (173): 775.00

AIRSPACE MONITORING SYSTEMS, INC. (120334)
31297 1 Invoice CO MONITORS 12/15/2016 1,020.58 22.22.840.00

Total AIRSPACE MONITORING SYSTEMS, INC. (120334): 1,020.58

AMERICAN WATER ENTERPRISES (1005)
000082 1 Invoice WATER CONTRACT 12/15/2016 26,441.16 51.42.515.00
000082 2 Invoice SEWER CONTRACT 12/15/2016 26,441.15 52.43.515.01

Total AMERICAN WATER ENTERPRISES (1005): 52,882.31

AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065)
121516 1 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/LON 12/15/2016 .25 22.22.552.00
121516 2 Invoice POLICE/LONG DISTANCE 12/15/2016 9.65 01.21.552.00
121516 3 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/LONG  12/15/2016 50.03 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065): 59.93

BINGHAM, JASON  (1103)
121316 1 Invoice CDL LICENSE 12/13/2016 65.00 01.41.563.00

Total BINGHAM, JASON  (1103): 65.00

BONNELL INDUSTRIES INC. (854)
0171858 1 Invoice PLOW SHIELD 12/09/2016 160.68 01.41.614.04
0172277 1 Invoice PLOW CUTTING EDGE 12/16/2016 1,202.16 01.41.613.12

Total BONNELL INDUSTRIES INC. (854): 1,362.84

CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840)
122006 1 Invoice CONFERENCE FEES 12/20/2016 225.00 01.11.563.00
122006 2 Invoice SYMPATHY FLOWERS 12/20/2016 64.85 01.11.929.01
122006 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/20/2016 102.53 01.13.511.08
122006 4 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 12/20/2016 282.34 01.13.651.02
122006 5 Invoice CREATIVE CLOUD 12/20/2016 21.24 01.16.563.00
122006 6 Invoice EXCHANGE ON LINE 12/20/2016 119.00 51.42.929.00
122006 7 Invoice FRAMES/TURNER HALL 12/20/2016 99.39 58.54.553.00
122006 8 Invoice INSTITUTIONAL SUPPLIE 12/20/2016 205.80 58.54.654.01
122006 9 Invoice PUBLICATION 12/20/2016 34.95 01.16.565.00

Total CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840): 1,155.10

CEDAR CROSS OVERHEAD DOOR (588)
190787 1 Invoice SLUDGE BARN 12/01/2016 324.00 01.41.863.09

Total CEDAR CROSS OVERHEAD DOOR (588): 324.00

COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA (120335)
71565392 1 Invoice SALT 12/09/2016 4,108.10 01.41.614.07

Page 103 of 109



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 12/13/2016 - 12/31/2016 Dec 22, 2016  10:08AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

71566354 1 Invoice SALT 12/12/2016 1,362.98 01.41.614.07
71567403 1 Invoice SALT 12/13/2016 1,371.19 01.41.614.07
71568496 1 Invoice SALT 12/14/2016 1,373.38 01.41.614.07

Total COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA (120335): 8,215.65

CRITICAL REACH (120339)
17-784 1 Invoice 2017 FEE 12/10/2016 145.00 01.21.652.03

Total CRITICAL REACH (120339): 145.00

DAN'S AERIAL SERVICE (119789)
4622 1 Invoice TREE/BRUSH 12/06/2016 500.00 01.41.517.02

Total DAN'S AERIAL SERVICE (119789): 500.00

DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1)
1635659 1 Invoice COPIES MADE 12/12/2016 201.27 01.13.579.00

Total DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1): 201.27

DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339)
122716 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 12/27/2016 225.00 01.13.511.06

Total DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339): 225.00

DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631)
118915 1 Invoice VEHICLE OPERATIONS 12/08/2016 490.95 22.22.613.00

Total DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631): 490.95

FROGGY'S FOG (120275)
2016-1680 1 Invoice FOG MACHINE FOR TRAI 12/01/2016 115.93 22.22.652.00

Total FROGGY'S FOG (120275): 115.93

GALENA CHRYSLER (82)
65415 1 Invoice SQUAD 2 REPAIRS 11/05/2016 22.63 01.21.513.06
65636 1 Invoice SQUAD 1 REPAIRS 11/29/2016 29.11 01.21.513.06

Total GALENA CHRYSLER (82): 51.74

GALENA DOWNTOWN BUSINESS ASSOC (118941)
121216 1 Invoice DONATION LUMINARIA 12/12/2016 1,000.00 01.11.929.01

Total GALENA DOWNTOWN BUSINESS ASSOC (118941): 1,000.00

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
79561 1 Invoice WEBSITE HOSTING FEE 11/01/2016 95.00 01.13.512.05

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 95.00

GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033)
008755 1 Invoice CREDIT 11/09/2016 220.00- 22.22.613.00

Page 104 of 109



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 12/13/2016 - 12/31/2016 Dec 22, 2016  10:08AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

GWI007958 1 Invoice 07 STERLING DUMP 12/08/2016 298.88 01.41.613.05

Total GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033): 78.88

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
122716 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 12/27/2016 240.00 01.13.511.07
122716 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  12/27/2016 225.00 01.13.511.07

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 465.00

HAPPY JOE'S (842)
026858 1 Invoice CHIEF'S MEETING 12/01/2016 78.21 01.21.549.00

Total HAPPY JOE'S (842): 78.21

HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931)
121516 1 Invoice HSA/FAMILY/EMPLOYEE  12/15/2016 4,361.00 01.218.0
121516 2 Invoice PPO/BLUE CROSS BLUE  12/15/2016 396.00 01.218.0
121516 3 Invoice HEALTH INSURANCE 12/15/2016 29,833.18 01.13.451.00
121516 4 Invoice W/BLUE CROSS/BLUE S 12/15/2016 1,014.15 78.32.464.02

Total HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931): 35,604.33

HERNANDEZ, MARIA (120336)
121916 1 Invoice CREDIT BALANCE REFU 12/19/2016 5.94 98.115.0

Total HERNANDEZ, MARIA (120336): 5.94

HIGLEY (120328)
61752 1 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 12/09/2016 12.03 01.13.511.06
61752 2 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 12/09/2016 12.03 01.13.511.08
61752 3 Invoice INSTITUTIONAL SUPPLIE 12/09/2016 12.03 58.54.654.01

Total HIGLEY (120328): 36.09

IL DEPTARTMENT OF CMS (119146)
T1717910 1 Invoice IN-SQUAD COMPUTER C 12/12/2016 221.35 01.21.542.00

Total IL DEPTARTMENT OF CMS (119146): 221.35

IL EPA-PERMIT SECTION (1148)
121616 1 Invoice EPA PERMIT 12/16/2016 250.00 17.52.815.03

Total IL EPA-PERMIT SECTION (1148): 250.00

ILLINOIS STATE POLICE (1152)
120116 1 Invoice BACKGROUND CHECK 12/01/2016 54.00 01.21.549.00

Total ILLINOIS STATE POLICE (1152): 54.00

INTERGRAPH CORPORATION SGI DIVISION (533)
1-181808538 1 Invoice SOFTWARE UPDATE 12/05/2016 588.00 01.45.532.01

Page 105 of 109



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 12/13/2016 - 12/31/2016 Dec 22, 2016  10:08AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total INTERGRAPH CORPORATION SGI DIVISION (533): 588.00

JDWI (235)
41397 1 Invoice SR. VAN SERVICES 11/30/2016 833.00 01.13.542.00

Total JDWI (235): 833.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
121516 1 Invoice ELECTRIC/STREET LIGH 12/15/2016 541.57 15.41.572.00
121516 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/ELECTRI 12/15/2016 341.07 01.41.571.01
121516 3 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 12/15/2016 151.28 17.52.571.01
121516 4 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 12/15/2016 75.17 22.22.576.01
121516 5 Invoice POOL/ELECTRIC 12/15/2016 225.32 59.55.571.01

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 1,334.41

JO DAVIESS CTY CLERK/RECORDER (393)
120216 1 Invoice RECORDING FEES 12/02/2016 230.00 01.14.553.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY CLERK/RECORDER (393): 230.00

JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121)
121216 1 Invoice B&B INSPECTIONS 12/12/2016 50.00 01.16.546.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121): 50.00

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690)
122016 1 Invoice clothing 12/20/2016 316.84 01.41.471.09
122016 2 Invoice TRACTOR 12/20/2016 627.09 01.41.613.10
122016 3 Invoice EQUIPMENT 12/20/2016 354.28 17.52.514.00

Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690): 1,298.21

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9304561724 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 12/06/2016 163.70 01.41.652.00
9304565171 1 Invoice TRASH CAN LINERS 12/07/2016 123.19 17.52.652.00
9304578662 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 12/13/2016 187.72 01.41.652.00

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 474.61

LEAGUE OF HISTORIC AMER. THEATERS (120332)
121516 1 Invoice MEMBERSHIP 12/15/2016 400.00 58.54.553.00

Total LEAGUE OF HISTORIC AMER. THEATERS (120332): 400.00

LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376)
1343164-201 1 Invoice INVESTIGATION PROGR 11/30/2016 31.00 01.21.652.03

Total LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376): 31.00

LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127)
3972 1 Invoice INLETS 12/09/2016 1,092.00 01.41.614.05

Page 106 of 109



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 12/13/2016 - 12/31/2016 Dec 22, 2016  10:08AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127): 1,092.00

LW ALLEN, INC (490)
102485 1 Invoice PLUYM LIFT STATION 12/12/2016 3,868.96 52.43.929.00

Total LW ALLEN, INC (490): 3,868.96

MAILFINANCE (119741)
N6273765 1 Invoice POSTAGE METER RENT 12/06/2016 338.85 01.13.579.02

Total MAILFINANCE (119741): 338.85

MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (38)
339203 1 Invoice COPIER 11/12/2016 131.15 22.22.512.00

Total MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (38): 131.15

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812)
2679910311 1 Invoice STARCOM RADIO CHAR 12/01/2016 10.00 01.21.549.00

Total MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812): 10.00

PEARSON, RON (120338)
120916 1 Invoice TRANSLATION SERVICE 12/09/2016 30.00 01.21.652.03

Total PEARSON, RON (120338): 30.00

PETTY CASH/CITY HALL (161)
121516 1 Invoice TRAVEL REIMBURSEME 12/15/2016 6.31 01.11.562.00
121516 2 Invoice SUPPLIES/MISC. 12/15/2016 82.54 01.11.929.01
121516 3 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 12/15/2016 51.86 01.13.651.02
121516 4 Invoice PAINT 12/15/2016 3.98 01.41.614.04
121516 5 Invoice FUEL 12/15/2016 20.01 01.46.655.00
121516 6 Invoice TRAVEL REIMBURSEME 12/15/2016 24.36 01.14.562.00

Total PETTY CASH/CITY HALL (161): 189.06

RODRIGUEZ, ALINA (120337)
120916 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 12/09/2016 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total RODRIGUEZ, ALINA (120337): 200.00

RUNDE AUTO GROUP (120009)
352979 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT 12/08/2016 667.21 17.52.514.00
353650 1 Invoice 2015 1-TON 12/15/2016 484.02 01.41.613.15

Total RUNDE AUTO GROUP (120009): 1,151.23

SBM (119936)
338703 1 Invoice OFFICE CHAIRS 12/19/2016 280.00 01.13.511.01

Total SBM (119936): 280.00

Page 107 of 109



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 12/13/2016 - 12/31/2016 Dec 22, 2016  10:08AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

SINAGRA, KEVIN (120196)
121716 1 Invoice FUEL 12/17/2016 50.82 01.41.655.00

Total SINAGRA, KEVIN (120196): 50.82

STEEL MART (567)
374397 1 Invoice PLOW 12/06/2016 36.30 01.41.613.15

Total STEEL MART (567): 36.30

STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230)
113016 1 Invoice FUEL 11/30/2016 322.86 01.41.655.00

Total STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230): 322.86

UNIFORM DEN EAST, INC. (119474)
48730 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/LORI 12/14/2016 38.28 01.21.471.15

Total UNIFORM DEN EAST, INC. (119474): 38.28

VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994)
7204 1 Invoice HOLIDAY DECORATIONS 12/08/2016 23.97 58.54.553.00

Total VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994): 23.97

VAN METER INC. (141)
S9501912.00 1 Invoice LED LIGHTING CONVERS 12/07/2016 178.32 58.54.511.00

Total VAN METER INC. (141): 178.32

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)
9776239084 1 Invoice VERIZON JET PACK FOR  12/01/2016 38.03 01.21.652.03
9776239085 1 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/VERI 12/15/2016 76.02 22.22.655.00

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 114.05

WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258)
121616 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 12/16/2016 79.92 01.11.929.01
121616 2 Invoice CLEANING SUPPLIES 12/16/2016 11.50 01.13.511.06
121616 3 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 12/16/2016 48.46 01.13.651.02
121616 4 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 12/16/2016 55.50 01.21.651.00
121616 5 Invoice SUPPLIES 12/16/2016 39.34 01.41.652.00
121616 6 Invoice SUPPLIES 12/16/2016 30.69 58.54.553.00
121616 7 Invoice HOLIDAY DECORATIONS 12/16/2016 273.60 01.11.929.07

Total WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258): 539.01

WEX BANK (119104)
122016 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 12/20/2016 808.32 01.41.655.00
122016 2 Invoice PARKS-GAS 12/20/2016 127.19 17.52.655.03
122016 3 Invoice POLICE-GAS 12/20/2016 1,056.08 01.21.655.00
122016 4 Invoice BUILDING-GAS 12/20/2016 26.85 01.46.655.00
122016 5 Invoice FIRE-GAS 12/20/2016 227.17 22.22.655.00

Page 108 of 109



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 12/13/2016 - 12/31/2016 Dec 22, 2016  10:08AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total WEX BANK (119104): 2,245.61

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
122716 1 Invoice TURNER HALL JANITORI 12/27/2016 350.00 58.54.536.00

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 350.00

WHITE'S LAWN CARE (119092)
8716 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIALS 12/03/2016 80.00 01.41.614.05

Total WHITE'S LAWN CARE (119092): 80.00

WHKS & CO. (119367)
35723 1 Invoice GEAR STREET DESIGN 12/13/2016 1,136.98 41.61.860.07

Total WHKS & CO. (119367): 1,136.98

ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC. (212)
0162730 1 Invoice SWEEPER 12/02/2016 128.25 01.41.613.11

Total ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC. (212): 128.25

Grand Totals: 123,254.03

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 4446924
Vendor number hash - split: 7087931
Total number of invoices: 69
Total number of transactions: 107

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 123,254.03 123,254.03

Grand Totals: 123,254.03 123,254.03

Page 109 of 109


	00.00 Agenda 12.27.16xx
	01.0520 Minutes cc121216
	02.0521 Construction Engineering
	03.0522 Materials Testing
	04.0524 Cemetery Park Work Plan
	DOC013
	DOC009
	DOC010
	DOC011
	DOC012

	05.0525 Deer Committee Report
	06.0526 Tax Abatement Ordinances
	Council Memo 2016
	2010 Sewer Bond Abatement Ordinance
	2012 A Bond Abate
	2012 B Bond Abate
	Palace Campground 2016 Abatement Ordinance
	Annexation Plat Exhibit A

	07.0530 2017 CIP Draft 1
	Cover
	Text
	Attach A
	Attach B
	Attach C
	Append A
	Appen A1
	Append A2
	Append B
	Append C
	Append D
	Append E
	Append F
	Append G
	Append H
	Append I

	08.0531 Warrants 12.27.16



